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December 9, 2020

The Honorable Ken Weyler, Chairman
Fiscal Committee of the General Court

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1. Pursuant to RSA 14:30-a, VI, authorize the NH Department of Justice (DOJ) to accept and
expend a grant in the amount of $628,472, from the US Department of Justice, Office of
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention, Second Chance Act Addressing the Needs of
Incarcerated Parents with Minor Children Grant (COIP), for the purpose of providing
Waypoint the funding to partner with the NH Department of Corrections, Family Connection
Center, to enhance programs that strengthen the bond between New Hampshire incarcerated
parents and their minor children effective upon the approvals of the Fiscal Committee of the
General Court and Governor and Executive Council through June 30, 2021. 100% Federal
Funds.

Funds are to be budgeted in account #02-20-20-2015 lOrl 188, Department of Justice,
Grants Administration, Family Connection Project as follows:

Class/Expense Class Title

072-509073 Grants-Federal

Current

SEY 2021

Budget

$0

Increase

Amount

$628,472

Revised

SFY2021

Budget

$628,472

Total $0 $628,472 $628,472

Source of Funds

000-400338 Federal Funds . $0 $628,472 $628,472

Telephone 603-271-3668 • FAX 603-271-2110 TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964



The Honorable Ken Weyler, Chairman
Fiscal Committee of the General Court

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

December 9, 2020

Page 2 of 3

2. Upon approval of Requested Action #7, authorize the NH Department of Justice (DOJ) to
enter into a subgrant with Waypoint, Manchester NH (Vendor #177166) in an amount not to
exceed $626,089, from the US Department of Justice, Office of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention, Second Chance Act Addressing the Needs of Inc^cerated Parents
with Minor Children Grant (COIP) for the purpose of partnering with the Department of
Corrections, Family Connection Center, to enhance programs that strengthen the bond
between New Hampshire incarcerated parents and their minor children effective upon the
approval of the Governor and Executive Council through September 30, 2023.

Funding is available as follows:

02-20-20-201510-1188 FY 2021

Family Connection Project
072-509073, Grants-Federal $626,089

EXPLANATION

The COIP Grant focuses on providing funds to develop programs focused on positive
interactions between incarcerated parents and their minor children. The approval of Requested
Action #7, to accept and expend the COIP Grant, will allow DOJ to subcontract with Waypoint
(formerly Child and Family Services of New Hampshire, New Hampshire Children's Aid
Society and New Hampshire Children's Aid & Protective Society). Waypoint will partner with
the Department of Corrections, Family Connection Center, to develop and implement The
Family Ties Inside and Out (FTIO) Project which focuses on the relationship between
incarcerated parent and child. These funds were not previously budgeted because the grants
were awarded on a competitive basis with no guarantee that New Hampshire would receive an
award.

The concept of the COIP program is that enhancing and maintaining family connections
reduces the likelihood that children will display risky behaviors and future involvement Nvith the
juvenile justice system. This program uses a Two-Generation approach to build family well-
being by supporting the child-parent relationship. For incarcerated parents, the project intends to
increase positive parent-child interactions and strengthen parenting responsibilities, after release
from incarceration, through the family in re-entry programming. This program reduces the
likelihood of an unsuccessful transition, anti-social behavior, and recidivism.

• For children, the project seeks to provide increased access to programs that mitigate the
harm on brain development, caused by traumatic events, by providing clinical support when
needed. Through the Family Resource Centers, children will benefit from increased protective



The Honorable Ken Weyler, Chairman
Fiscal Committee of the General Court

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

December 9,2020

Page 3 of3

factors, decreased isolation, and programs that provide custodial caregivers the skills needed to
provide a healthy environment for child development.

The funds budgeted to support the activities are as follows:

Class 072-Grants Federal to subcontract to Waypoint to work with the Department of
Corrections to develop and implement a program which focuses on the relationship between
incarcerated parents and their minor children.

Approval of Requested Action #2 will allow Waypoint to partner with the Department of
Corrections, Family Connections Center (FCC), Family Ties, and nine Family Resource Centers
throughout the state to strengthen and expand a coordinated system of programs and services that
meet the needs of incarcerated parents, their children, and custodial caregivers during the period
of incarceration. Wajq^oint will implement FTIO to provide staff training at all locations,
develop safety policies for child visitation, add re-entry staff at FCC to increase the number of
parent-child contacts, and increase pre-release (re-entry) planning and engagement with families.
In addition, Waypoint will work with Family Ties to provide therapeutic services to the most
vulnerable children including family therapy and coping skills. Waypoint will also implement a
referral mechanism to connect care-giving families to Family Resource Centers for support,
resources, and skill building in order to maintain healthy child development.

Services will be delivered where parent/child visitations take place; specifically the
Berlin Men's Prison, Concord Men's Prison, and Concord Women's Prison. Assistance will also
be given to Family Resource Centers in Antrim, Peterborough, Gorham, Claremont, Portsmouth,
Laconia, Manchester, Nashua, and Concord. Referrals for clients needing therapeutic services ,
will be coordinated across the State by Family Ties.

In the event that federal funds are no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Thank you for
your consideration of this request.

Respectfully submitted,

lorjflfi J. MacDonald
Attorney General '

#2951350 r
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02-20-20-201510-1188 Family Connection Project

Total Agency Authorization $ 628,472

Less Expenditures to 06/30/2020 $ -

Remaining Authorization to Budget $ 628,472

Less Current Budget Authorization $

Total Available for Budgeting $ 628,472

Available to Budget at Later Date $

REQUESTED ACTION $ 628,472

Award

-

Grant Award Number Amount Expenses to 06/30/2020 Balance

2020-IG-BX-0002 $ 628,472 $ - $ 628,472
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I. RECIPIENT NAME AND ADDRESS (Including Zip Code)

New Hunpshire Dcptitmenl of /ustice
33 Cipitol Street
Concord.NH0330t-6310

<. AWARD NUMBER; 2020-IG-BX-0002

5. PROJECT PERIOD: FROM 10/01/2020 TO 09/30/2023

BUDGET PERIOD; FROM 10/01/2020 TO 09/30/2023

6. AWARD DATE 7. ACTION

Initial
2a. GRANTEE IRS/VENDOR NO,

026002618

8. SUPPLEMENT NUMBER

00

2b. GRANTEE DUNS NO.

808591127
9. PREVIOUS AWARD AMOUNT $ 0

3, PROJECT TITLE

The Faniily Ties Inside Oul Project
lO.AMOUNTOFTHISAWARD $628.<72

11. TOTAL AWARD J 628,472

12. SPECIAL CONDITIONS

THE ABOVE GRANT PROJECT IS APPROVED SUBJECT TO SUCH CONDITIONS OR LIMITATIONS AS ARE SET FORTH
ON THE ATTACHED PAGE(S).

13. STATUTORY AUTHORITY FOR GRANT

This project is supported under FY20(OJJDP • Second Chance Act Addressing the Needs of Incarcerated Parents with Minor Children-COIP)Pub- L. No. 116-
93. 133 SbI-2317,2<08

l< . CATALOG OF DOMESTIC FEDERAL ASSISTANCE (CFDA Number)

16,831 - Children of Incarcerated Parents

15. METHODOF PAYMENT r

GPRS

AGENCY GRANTEE ACCEPTANCE

16. TYPED NAME AND TITLE OF APPROVING OFFICIAL

KathariiK T. Sullivan

Priitcipal Deputy Assistant Attorney General

18. TYPED NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED GRANTEE OFFICIAL

Kathleen Carr

Director of Administration

17. SIGNATURE OF APPROVING OFFICIAL 19. SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED RECIPIENT OFFICIAL

.  Cttrr

19A. DATE

11/18/2020

20. ACCOUNTING CLASSIRCATION CODES

FISCAL FUND BUD. DIV.
YEAR CODE ACT. OFC. REG. SUB. POMS AMOUNT

X  B IG 70 00 . 00 628<72

21. VIGTGT0I<9

OJP FORM <000/2 (REV. 5-87) PREVIOUS EDITIONS ARE OBSOLETE.

OiP FORM <000/2 (REV. <-«8)
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PROJECT NUMBER 2020-IG-8X-0002 AWARD DATE

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

I. Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any assurances or certifications
submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of performance also is a material
requirement of this award.

Limited Exceptions. In certain special circumstances, the U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ") may determine that it will
not enforce, or enforce only in part, one or more requirements otherwise applicable to the award. Any such exceptions
regarding enforcement, including any such exceptions made during the period of performance, arc (or will be during
the period of performance) set out through the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP") webpage entitled "Legal Notices:
Special circumstances as to particular award conditions" (ojp.gov/funding/Explore/LegalNotices-AwardReqts.htm), and

. incorporated by reference into the award.

By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the recipient, the authorized recipient official accepts all material
requirements of the award, and specifically adopts, as if personally executed by the authorized recipient official, all
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of
performance.

Failure to comply with one or more award requirements - whether a condition set out in full below, a condition
incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification related to conduct during the award period •• may
result in OJP t^ing appropriate action with respect to the recipient and the award. Among other things, the OJP may
withhold award fiinds, disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award. DOJ, including OJP, also may take other legal
action as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this award (or concealment
or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621,
and/or 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273), and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false
claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its terms, that provision
shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be
held, instead, that the provision is utterly invalid or -unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this
award.

OJP FORM 4000/2 (REV. 4-88)

KC 11/18/20
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PROJECT NUMBER 2020-IG-BX-0002 AWARD DATE

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

2. Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted
and supplemented by IX)J in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") apply to this FY
2020 award from OJP.

The Part 200 Uniform Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on December 26,2014. If this FY 2020 award
supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under the same award number (e.g., funds awarded during or before
December 2014), the Part 200 Uniform Requirements apply with respect to all funds under that award number
(regardless of the award date, and regardless of whether derived from the initial award or a supplemental award) that
are obligated on or after the acceptance date of this FY 2020 award.

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to OJP awards and subawards
("subgrants"), see the OJP website at https://ojp.gov/fundin^art200UniformRcquirements.htm.

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at .
any tier) must retain -- typically for a period of 3 years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF
425), unless a different retention period applies -- and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier) must provide access, include performance measurement information, in addition to the financial records,
supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2 C.F.R, 200.333.

In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared or distributed by OJP
that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from, the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the
recipient is to contact OJP promptly for clarification.

3. Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted on the OJP website
(currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide" available at https://ojp.gov/financialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any
updated version that may be posted during the period of performance. The recipient agrees to comply with the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide.

4. Reclassification of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United Slates Code

On September 1,2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the U.S. Code were editorially
reclassified (that is, moved and renumbered) to a new Title 34, entitled "Crime Control and Law Enforcement." The
reclassification encompassed a number of statutory provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP ̂ants and
cooperative agreements), including many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Effective as of September 1,2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory provision that has been
reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a reference to that statutory provision as reclassified to
Title 34. This rule of construction specifically includes references set out in award conditions, references set out in
material incorporated by reference through award conditions, and references set out in other award requirements.

OJP FORM 400IV2 (REV. 4-88)
KC 11/18/20
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PROJECT NUMBER 2020-IG-BX.0002 AWARD DATE

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

5. Required training for Point of Contact and alt Financial Points of Contact

Both the Point ofContact (POC) and all Financial Points of Contact (FPOCs) for this award must have successfully
completed an "OJP financial management and grant administration training" by 120 days after the date of the
recipient's acceptance of the award. Successful completion of such a training on or after January I, 2018, will satisfy
this condition.

In the event that either the POC or an FPOC for this award changes during the period of performance, the new POC or
FPOC must have successfully completed an "OJP financial management and grant administration training" by 120
calendar days after — (1) the date of OJP's approval of the "Change Grantee Contact" CAN {in the case of a new
POC), or (2) the date the POC enters information on the new FPOC in CMS (in the case of a new FPOC). Successful
completion of such a training on or after January 1,2018, will satisfy this condition.

A list of OJP trainings that OJP will consider "OJP financial management and grant adminisuation training" for
purposes of this condition is available at https://www.ojp.govAraining/fmts.htm. All trainings that satisfy this condition
include a session on grant fraud prevention and detection.

The recipient should anticipate that OJP will immediately withhold ("freeze") award funds if the recipient fails to
comply with this condition. The recipient's failure to comply also may lead OJP to impose additional appropriate
conditions on this award.

6. Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law to use the "dc minimis"
indirect cost rate dcsaibed in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(0, and that elects to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate, must advise
OJP in writing of both its eligibility and its election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part 200
Uniform Requirements. The "de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined
by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

7. Requirement to re|X>rt potentially duplicative funding

If the recipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the recipient receives any other award of federal
funds during the period of performance for this award, the recipient promptly must determine whether funds from any
of those other federal awards have been, arc being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the
identical cost items for which funds arc provided under this award. If so, the recipient must promptly notify the DOJ
awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) in writing of the potential duplication, and, if so requested by the DOJ
awarding agency, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-project-scope grant adjustment notice (CAN) to
eliminate any inappropriate duplication of funding.

OJP FORM 4000/2 (REV. 4-88)
KC 11/18/20
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PROJECT NUMBER 2020-IG-BX^2 AWARD DATE

—i

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

Requirements related to System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award'Management (SAM),
currently accessible at https;//www.sam.gov/, This includes applicable requirements regarding registration with SAM,
as well as maintaining the currency of information in SAM.

The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to first-tier subrecipicnts
(first-tier "subgrantecs"), including restrictions on subawards to entities that do not acquire and provide (to the
recipient) the unique entity identifier required for SAM registration.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are posted on the OJP web site
at https;//ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SAM.htm (Award condition: System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal
Identifier Requirements), and are incorporated by reference here.

This condition does not apply to an award to an individual who received the award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated to
any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

OJP FORM 4000/2 (REV. 4-88)

KC 11/18/20
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PROJECT NUMBER 2020-IG-BX-0002 AWARD DATE

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

9. Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must-

A. Ensure that, as pert of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is or will be funded (in whole

or in part) with award funds, the recipient (or any subrecipient) properly verifies the employment eligibility of the
individual who is being hired, consistent with the provisions of S U.S.C. i324a(aKI) and (2).

B. Notify all persons associated with the recipient (or any subrecipient) who are or will be involved in activities imder
this award of both—

(1) this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

(2) the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. I324a(a)(l) and (2) that, generally speaking, make it unlawful, in the United
States, to hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be notified of the award
requirement for employment eligibility verification and of the associated provisions of 8 U.S.C. I324a(aXI) and (2).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform Requirements), maintain
records of all employment eligibility verifications pertinent to compliance with this award condition in accordance with
Form 1-9 record retention requirements, as well as records of all pertinent notifications and trainings.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds may be obligated for the
reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. Stafl* involved in the hiring process

For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under this award' specifically includes
(without limitation) any and all recipient (or any subrecipient) officials or other staff who are or will be involved in the
hiring process with respect to a position that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify

For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of employment eligibility, the
recipient (or any subrecipient) may choose to participate in, and use, E-Verify (www.e-verify.gov), provided an
appropriate person autfrarized to act on behalf of the recipient (or subrecipient) uses E-Verify (and follows the proper
E-Verify procedures, including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a "Final Nonconfirmation") to
confirm employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the United States that is or will be funded (in whole or
in part) with award funds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the Virgin Islands of the United
States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any subrecipient at any tier, or

OJP FORM 4000/2 (REV. 4.«8)

KC 11/18/20
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SPECIAL CONDITIONS

any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to relieve any recipient, any subrecipicnt
at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(aXl)
and (2).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify visit the E-Verify
website (https:/Avww.e-vcrify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-Verify@dhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email E-
Verify at E-VerifyEmploycrAgeni@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before award acceptance.

10. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (Pll)

The recipient (and any "subrecipicnt" at any tier) must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an
actual or imminent "breach" (0MB M-17-12) if it (or a subrecipicnt) - (1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores,
maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "personally identifiable information (Pll)" (2 CFR 200.79) within the
scope of an OJP grant-ftinded program or activity, or (2) uses or operates a "Federal information system" (0MB
Circular A-130). The recipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent breach of
Pll to an OJP Program Manager no later than 24 hours afier an occurrence of an actual breach, or the detection of an
imminent breach.

11. All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization

The recipient; and any subrecipicnt ("subgraniee") at^any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements for
authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to agreements that - for purposes of federal grants
administrative requirements - OJP considers a "subaward" (and therefore docs not consider a procurement
"contract"). '

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web site at
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explorc/SubawardAuthorizaiion.htm (Award condition:' All subawards ("subgrants") must have
specific fEderal authorization), and are incorporated by reference here.

12. Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompclitivc approach in any procurement contract that would
exceed $250,000

The recipient, and any subrecipicnt ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements to obtain
specific advance approval to use a noncompetitivc approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the
Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $250,000). This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of
federal grants administrative requirements -- OJP considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not consider
a subaward).

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitivc approach in a procurement contract under
an OJP award arc posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explorc/NoncompetitivcProcurcmcnt.htm
(Award condition; Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitivc approach in a procurement contract
(if contract would exceed $250,000)), and arc incorporated by reference here.

OJP FOItM 40CXV2 (REV. 4-M)

KC n/l8/20
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13. Unreasonable restrictions on competition under the award; association with federal government

SCOPE. This condition applies with respect to any procurement of property or services that is funded (in whole or in
part) by this award, whether by the recipient or by any subrecipient at any tier, and regardless of the dollar amount of
the purchase or acquisition, the method of procurement, or the itature of any legal instrument used. The provisions of
this condition must be among those included in any subaward (at any tier). ^

1. No discrimination, in procurement transactions, against associates of the federal government

Consistent with the (DOJ) Part 200 Uniform Requirements - including as set out at 2 C.F.R. 200.300 (requiring
awards to be 'manage[d] and administeited):in a manner so as to ensure that Federal funding is e.xpended and
associated programs are implemented in full accordance with U.S. statutory and public policy requirements") and
200.319(a) (generally requiring "(a]ll procurement transactions {to] be conducted in a manner providing full and open
competition" and forbidding practices "restrictive of competition," such as "[pjlacing unreasonable requirements on
firms in order for them to qualify to do business" and taking "[a]ny arbitrary action in the procurement process") - no
recipient (or subrecipient, at any tier) may (in any procurement transaction) discriminate against any person or entity on
the basis of such person or entity's status as an "associate of the federal government" (or on the basis of such person or
entity's status as a parent, affiliate, or subsidiary of such w associate), except as expressly set out in 2 C.F.R.
200.319(a) or as specifically authorized by USDOJ.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs arc not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds may be obligated for the
reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. The term "associate of the federal government" means any person or entity engaged or employed (in the past or at
present) by or on behalf of the federal government - as an employee, contractor or subcontractor (at any tier), grant
recipient or -subrecipient (at any tier), agent, or otherwise - in undertaking any work, project, or activity for or on
behalf of (or in providing goods or services to or on behalf oQ the federal government, and includes any applicant for
such employment or engagement, and any person or entity committed by legal instrument to undertake any such work,
project, or activity (or to provide such goo^ or services) in future.'

B. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any subrecipient at any tier, or
any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

OJP FORM 4000/2 (REV. 4-88)
KC 11/18/20



Department of Justice (DOJ)

Office of Justice Programs

Onice of Juvenile Justice and

Delinquency Prevention

AWARD CONTINUATION

SHEET

Grant

PACE 9 OF 14

PROJECT NUMBER 2020.[G-BX-0002 AWARD DATE

14.

15.

;  SPECIAL CONDITIONS

Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and
OJP authority to terminate award)

t

The recipient, and any subrccipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements (including
requirements (o report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the
part of recipients, subrccipienls ("subgrantecs"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees"
of the recipient or of any subrecipient.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons are posted on the
OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-TralTicking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited
conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJP'
authority to terminate award)), and are incorporated by reference here.

Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of conferences, meetings, trainings, and
other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable laws, regulations,.
policies, and official EKDJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting requirements, where
applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ),
including the provision of food and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award appears in the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10of"Postaward Requirements" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

16. Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

The recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and eflectiveness of work under this award.
The data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the program
solicitation or other applicable written guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the Government
Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modemization Act of 2010, and other applicable laws.

17. OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the recipient - or any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier - develops or
delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantecs,
available at https://ojp.gov/funding/lmpIement/TrainingPrinciplesForGrantees-Subgrantees.htm.

18. Effect of failure to address audit issues -

The recipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) may withhold
award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as determined by the IXU awarding agency) the recipient
does not satisfactorily and promptly address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements (or by the terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits,
investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

19. Potential imposition of additional requirements

The recipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the DOJ awarding agency
(OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for this award, if the recipient is designated as "high-
risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee I ist.

OJP FORM 4000/2 (REV. 4.«S)
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20. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 42

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subparl E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an
equal employment opportunity program.

21. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil ri^ts and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 54

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with alt applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in certain "education programs."

22. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Pan 38 (as may be applicable from time to time), specifically including any applicable requirements regarding
written notice to program beneficiaries and prospective program beneficiaries.

Currently, among other things, 28 C.F.R. Pan 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of discrimination on the
basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or refusal to ancnd or panicipate in a religious
practice. Pan 38, currently, also sets out rules and requirements that penain to recipient and subrecipient
("subgrantee") organizations that engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements
that penain to recipients and subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.

The text of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 is available via the Electronic Code of Federal Regulations (currently accessible at
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR7page-browsc), by browsing to Title 28-Judicial Administration, Chapter 1, Part
38, under e-CFR "current" data.

23. Restrictions on "lobbying"

In genera], as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or oppose the enactment, repeal,
modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any level of government. Sec 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There
may be exceptions if an applicable federal statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be
barred by law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence) a federal agency, a Member of
Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them) with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or
cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing, extending,
or modifying any such award. Sec31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an exception that
applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or subrecipient) would or might
fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the
express prior written approval of OJP.

OJP FORM 4000/2 (REV. 4-88)
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24. Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY 2020) The recipient, and any ;
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable restrictions on the use of federal funds set out in
federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent restrictions that may be set out in applicable appropriations acts arc indicated
at https;//ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FY20AppropriationsRcstrictions.hUn, and arc incorporated by reference here. Should
a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might fall
within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed
without the express prior written approval of OJP.

25. Reporting potential fraud, waste, and abuse, and similar misconduct

The recipient, and any subrccipients ("subgrantccs") at any tier, must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the Inspector
General (010) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or other
person has, in connection with funds under this award— (1) submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2)
committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar
misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award should be reported to the
010 by"(l) online submission accessible via the GIG wcbpage at https://oig.justicc.gov/hotlinc/contact-grants.htm
(select "Submit Report Online"); (2) mail directed to: U.S. Department of Justice, OfTice of the Inspector General,
Investigations Division, ATTN: Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20530; and/or (3) by
facsimile directed to the DOJ OIG Investigations Division (Attn: Grantee Reporting) at (202) 616-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at https7/oig.justice.gov/hoUine.

OJP FORM 4000/2 (REV, 4-88)
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26. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related mancrs

No recipient or subrecipicnt ("subgrantee") under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or
subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality
agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in
accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to contravene
requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 {which relates to classified information), Form 4414 (which relates to
sensitive compaitmented information), or any other form issued by a federal department or agency governing the •
nondisclosure of classified information.

1. In accepting this award, the recipient-

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees
or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or
conuactors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute
agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud,
or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt
written notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption oO such
obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

2. Ifthe recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgrants"), procurement contracts, or
both- .

a. it represents that-

(1) it has determined that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may or will receive award funds
(whether through a subaward ("subgrant"), procurement contract, or subcontract under a procurement contract) either
requires or has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently
prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support this representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds
under this award is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit
or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will
immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to
the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption oO such obligations only if expressly
authorized to do so by that agency.
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27. Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all applicable provisions of 41
U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under specified circumstances, discrimination against an
employee as reprisal Tor the employee's disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a
gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger to public
health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

The recipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native language of the workforce), of
employee rights and remedies under4l U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award, the recipient is to
contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for guidance.

28. Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving," 74 Fed. Reg.
51225 (October 1,2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients ("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies
banning employees from text messaging while driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this
award, and to establish workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

29. Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ

If the recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ, currently or at any time
during the course of the period of performance under this award,-the recipient must disclose that fact and certain related
information to OJP by email at OJP.ComplianccReporting@ojp.usdoJ.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high risk
includes any status under which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the recipient's past
performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the recipient. The recipient's disclosure must include
the following; 1. The federal awarding agency that currently designates the recipient high risk, 2. The date the recipient
was designated high risk, 3. The high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone number, and
email address), and 4. The reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding agency.

30. The recipient agrees to submit a final repori at the end of this award documenting all relevant project activities during
the entire period of support under this award. This report will include detailed information about the project(s) funded,
including, but not limited to, information about how the funds were actually used for each purpose area, data to support
statements of progress, and data concerning individual results and outcomes of funded projects reflecting project
successes and impacts. The final report is due no later than 90 days following the close of this award period or the
expiration of any extension periods. This report will be submitted to the Office of Justice Programs, on-line through
the Internet at https://grants.ojp.usdoj.gov/.

31. The recipient shall submit semiannual progress reports. Progress reports shall be submitted within 30 days after the end
of the reporting periods, which arc June 30 and December 31, for the life of the award. These reports will be submitted
to the Office of Justice Programs, on-line through the Internet at https://grants.ojp.usdoj.gov/.

32. The recipient agrees to report data on the grantee's OJJDP-approved performance measures as part of the semi-annual
categorical progress report. This data will be submitted on line at OJJDP's Performance Measures website
(https://ojjdp.gov/grantees/pm/index.html) by July 31 and January 31 each year for the duration of the award. Once data
entry is complete, the grantee will be able to create and download a "Performance Measures Data Report." This
document is to be included as an attachment to the grantee's narrative categorical assistance progress report submitted
in CMS for each reporting period.

OJP FORM 400(V2 (REV. 4-88)
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33. With respect to this award, fcdcraJ funds may not be used to pay cash compensation (salary plus bonuses) to any
employee of the award recipient at a rate that exceeds 110% of the maximum annual salary payable to a member of the
federal government's Senior Executive Service (SES) at an agency with a Certified SES Performance Appraisal System
for that year. (An award recipient may compensate an employee at a higher rate, provided the amount in excess of this
compensation limitation is paid with non-federal funds.)

This limitation on compensation rates allowable under this award may be waived on an individual basis at the
discretion of the OJP official indicated in the program announcement under which this award is made.

34. FFATA reponing; Subawards and executive compensation

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements to report first-tier subawards ("subgrants") of S2S,000 or
more and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total compensation of the five most highly compensated
executives of the recipient and first-tier subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees") of award funds. The details of recipient
obligations, which derive from the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of2006 (FFATA), are posted
on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FFATA.htm (Award condition: Reporting Subawards and
Executive Compensation), and are incorporated by reference here.

This condition, including its reporting requirement, does not apply to—(I) an award of less than $25,000, or (2) an
award made to an individual who received the award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit
organization that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

35. Recipient integrity and performance matters: Requirement to report information on certain civil, criminal, and
administrative proceedings to SAM and FAPIIS

The recipient must comply with any and all applicable requirements regarding reporting of information on civil,
criminal, and administrative proceedings connected with (or connected to the performance oO either this OJP award or
any other grant, cooperative agreement, or procurement contract from the federal government. Under certain
circumstances, recipients of OJP awards are required to report information about such proceedings, through the federal
System for Award Management (known as "SAM"), to the designated federal integrity and performance system
(currently, "FAPilS").

The details of recipient obligations regarding the required reporting (and updating) of information on certain civil,
criminal, and administrative proceedings to the federal designated integrity and performance system (currently,
"FAPIIS") within SAM arc posted on the OJP web site at httpsy/ojp.gov/funding/FAPIIS.htm (Award condition:
Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters, including Recipient Reporting to FAPIIS), and are incorporated by
reference here.

36. The recipient may not obligate, expend or draw down funds until the Office of the Chief Financial OITicer (OCFO) has
approved the budget and budget narrative and a Grant Adjustment Notice (CAN) has been issued to remove this special
condition.
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GRANT AGREEMENT

Hie State of New Hampshire and the Subrccipient hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1,1. State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address

33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301

1.3. Subrccipient Name

Waypoint

1.4. Subrecipient Address

464 Chestnut St, Manchester NH 03105

1.5 Subrccipient Phone U.

603-518-4000

1.6. Account Number

11880000-072

1.7. Completion Date.

09/30/2023

1.8. Grant Limitation

$

626,089

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency

Kathleen Carr

1.10. State Agency Telephone l^umber

(603) 271-3658

"By signing this form we certify that we hove complied with any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant,
inrliiHiup if annlicable RSA 31:95-b."

l.Hr)Subrccipient Signature 1

Subr^piO*Sigildm^ If Applicable.
1.12. Name & Title of Subrccipient Sighdr 1

^  t/uht / (.to
Name & Title of Subrccipient Signor 2 If Applicable.

1.13. Acknowledgment: Stale of New Hampshire, Gounty of »
on , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person, identified in block 1.12., known to me (or
satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is signed in block l.l 1., and acknowledged that he/she executed this
document in the capacity indicated in block.1.12.

1.13.1. Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

(Seal)

1.13.2. Name & Title of Notary Publicor Justice of the Peace-

1.14. State Agency Signature(s) 1.15. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

KjitfiUen Carr Kathleen Carr, Director of Administration

1.16. Approval by. Attorney General (Fonn, Substance and Execution) (if G &'C approval required)

By; Assistant Attorney General, On: / /
11/17/2020

1.17. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: ,/ /

z.aUUrc. ur wutvis.. in CAUiiuiigc lui gioin lunua ptuTiuwu >j} uiw v. .w.. o o- a *

identified in block l.l (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Subrccipient identified iu block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as
"the Subrccipient"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").

Subrccipient lnitial(s):
Rev. 9/2015

Date:



3. ARPA COVERED. Excqrt u dbenvijc jpccifically provided for herein, the
Subrccipicnt shell perform Ihe Prryect in, and \vith respect to, the. State of New
Hampshire. /

4. tTFKKCnve DATE: COMPLEmON OF PROJECT.

4.1. This Agrecmeni,. and all obligations of the pprtics hercut^r, shall become
effective oh tlit dale on the dnte of approval of this Agreement by the. Governor
and Council of the Sutc of NcwTlampshire if required (block 1.17), or upon
signature by. the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the effective date").

4.1 Except as otlier\vise specifically provided herein, the Ptojcd, including all
reports required ̂  this Agreement, shall be compleied in fTS entirety prior to
the dhte in block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Corhfrfetion Dale").

5. GRANT AMOUNT: LtMrTATION ON AMOUNT: VOtiail:R.S: PAYMENT.
5.1. The Grant Amount is idcitlified and more pexticularly described in EXHTDrt 13,;

altochedhcreto.

5.2. The nuuiner of, and schedule of payment shall be asset forth in.EXHIBlT B.
5.3. (n sccoidsncc vvith the provisicits set forth in^EXHlorr B, and in consideration

of Ihe satisfactory performance of the Project, as determint^ by Ihe Staie, and as.
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of iltcu. general (Rovi5ioiis» the State shall pay the
Subrecipimt (he Grant Amount. The Slate shall withhold from Ihe amount
Otherwise payable to the SubtccipiaU under this siibparagra;^ 5.3 those sums
required, or permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.K RSA 80:7 through 7<.

5.4. The payment by Ihe State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and Ihe
complete payment to the Subrccipicnt for all cxpcnus, of Nvhalcver rialure,
incurred I7 the Subrecipicnl in the performance hereof, and shall be Ihe.only.
and the.compieie, compensation to the Subrccipicnt for the Prefect. The Slate
shall have no liabilities to the Subrecipient other than the Grant Amount.

5.5. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and
notwithstanding unexpected circumstances,.in no event shall the total of ell
payments authorized, or actually made, hcreunder exceed the Grant limitatjon
set forth in block 1.8 of these general provisions.

6. COMPLIANCE BY SUBRECIPIENT WITH LAWS AND RIIOULATIONS.
In connection Avith the performance of the Project, the Subrecipient riiall comply
with all statutes, laws regulations, and or^rs of federal, state, county, or
rhunkipa] authorities which shall Impose' any. obligations or duty upon the;
Subrccipicfit, including the acquisition of any and all necessary.permits.

7. RECORDS nnd ACCOUNTS.
7.1. Bet^vccn the I-flcctivc Dale and the date three (3) yean after the Completion

Date the Subrecipient shall keep detailed occouints of all 'expenses incurred-iri
connection Nvich the Project, including, but not limited Id, cote of
administretipn, iraasportatton, insunuice. telephone calls, and clerical materiols
and services Such accounts shall bc supportcd by receipts, invoices, bills and
other similar documents.

7.2. BcUvccn tlie EfTective Dale aixl the dale three (3) years after the Completion
Dale, at any lime during the Subrreipienl's normal ̂ incss hours, and as often
as the State shall demoixi, the Subrecipient shall make available to Ihe State all
records pertaining (0 inatien covered by this Agreement. The Subredpient shall
permit the Slate to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make
audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data'
(as that term is hereinafter defined), and other informalidn relatiim to all matters
covered by this AgrccmenL As used in this paragraph. "Subrecipieiit" ineJudes
all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common
owtrership %vith, the entity identified as the SiA>rectpienl in block 1.3 of these
provbions

8. PERSONNF.!.

8.1. The Subrecipient sIuiU, at its own c-xpense, provide all personnel neceuary to
perfbrm the Project. The:Subrecipient waaants that all pcrsonnd engaged in the
Project shall be qualified to perform such Project. ^ Pi^pcrly licen^
and outhorized to perform such Project utxler all applicable laws.

8.2. The Subrccipicnt shall not hire, nnd it shall nc4 permit any subcontractor,
subgrantee, or other person; firm or corporation wth \yhom it b engaged in a
combined chbrt to perform the P'roject, to hire any pcrsnn vvho has a contractual
relationship with the Stale, or ̂ vhb is a Slate officer or. employee, elected or

8.3. appointed.
TTw Grant Officer shall be the representative of the Stale hcreunder. In the event
of any dispute hcreunder,.the interpretation of this Agreement by the-Grant
Officer, and hiit/her decbion on any dbputc, shall be fiiui!.

9. DATA. RETENtlQN OF DATA: ACCESS:
9.1. As ustti in this Agreement, Ihe word "data" shall mean all informalion and

.things developed or obtained 'during the perfonnancc of, or o^uircd or
developed by reason cif. this Agreemait, inclining, but not limited to. all studies,
reports, files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,
computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters; memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.

Rev. 9/2015

9.-2. Benveen the EITcciivc Date and the Coinpletion Date Ihe Subrecipient shall
grant to Ihe Slotc, or any person designated by it, unrcslricled access to all data
for exsrmination, duplication, publicaiion, translalion, sale, disposal, or for any
iXhcr purpose whatsoever.

9.3. No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the Slate.

9.4. On and after the Effcctiyc Date all data, and any property which has been
received from the Stale or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
thb Agreement, shall be ihe propcrty of the State, and shall be returrwd to the
Stale upon dem'aivl or upon tenninalion of this Agreement for any reason,
whicbe^ shall first ocair.

9.5. The State, and anyone it shall designate,' shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, dbtributc artd othowse use, in tvhole or in part, all data.

10. CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding arching in
this Agreement to Uie contrary, all obligations of (he Slate hereundcr, including,
wibout jimiiation, the continuance of paiynients hereundcr. arc cetnlingcm upon
the availability or continue appropriation of funds, arid in no cvoit shall the
State be liable for any poymcnts hereunder in excess of sucH available or
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or tennination of thasc funds, the
State shall have the right to withheld payment laitil such fbrids bcciQinc
available, if ever, and shall have the rî  to lermmtue thb Agreement
immediately upon giving the Sid>recipient notice of such terminal k>i).

11. EVENT OK DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

I LL Any one or more of the following acts or otnissions of the Subrccipieni shrdl
constinite an event of defauti hereurtder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of
Default"):

11.1.1 Failure to perform the Project satisiaclorily or on schedule; or
11.1.2 Failure id submit any report required hereunder, or
I.1.1.3 Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder. or
I I.1.4 Failure to perform any of the Other covenants and cqrvliiions of this Agreement.
11.2. Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any one, or

more, or all, of the following actions:
11.2.1 Give the Subrecipicnl a written notice specifying the Event of OcthuU.^

requiring, h to be remedied within, in the absecKe of a greater or Ictfcr
specification of lime, thirty (30) daj-s from the dale of the notice;.and if the
Event of f^cfault is not timdy remedied, terminate thb Agreement, efTecliye ̂ yp
(2) days after giving the Sidtrccipieni notice of termination; and

11.2.2 Give the Subrecipient a vvricten notice specifying the Event of Defsult ̂
suspending all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the
poriidn of the Grant Amount wiiich would otherwise accrue to the Subrecipient
during the period from tire dote of such notice until such time as the State
determines tliot the Subrccipicnt has cured the Event of Default shall never be
paid to the Subrecipient; luxl

riJl.3' Set offiagainst any other obligation Ihc Slate may owe to the Subrccipicnt any
ihe SlBtc suiTcTS by reason ofany Event of Default; and

1 i.2.4 1'rcal the agreement us breached and puisue any of its remedies at law or in
equity, or both.

12. TERMINATION.
12.1. In Ihe event of any early termination of thb Agreement for any reason other than

the cotnplclioii of the Project, tJie Subrecipient shall deliver to the Grant Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) days aftcrlhcdatc of tcmiinalion, a report {hereinafter
referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all ITojcct-V/ork
performed, and iIk Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of
termination.

12.2. In the event of Tennination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
prdvbiuiis, the approval of such a Tenniimtion Report by the Slate teall oititle
the Subrecipicnl to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned-to and
including the date of term ination.

12.3. In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10. or 12.4 of titcse general
provbions, the approval of such a Tcrmirialion Report by Ihe State ̂ 11 in no
event reiieve the Subnxipient from any and all'liability for damages sustain^ or
incurred by'the Slate as a result of llw Subrccipienl's breach of its cbligaiio^
hereundcr.

12.4. Notwilhsundiiig anything in this Agreement to (he contmry, either the State or,
except rvliere notice default has been given to the Subrecipient hcrcimdcr; the
Subrccipicnt, may terminate tins Agrccihent wlhout cause upon thirty (30) days
written notice.

13. CONFLICT OF INTEItEST. No otTicc'r, member of employee of the
Subrecipient, and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New
Hampshire (V of the governing body of the locality or iocaliliu in wriich the
Project is to be performed, who exercises any furicliora or resportsibililies in the
review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall
participate in any decision relating to thb Agreement tvhich affects his or her
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18.

19.

personal interwl or Ihc imeresl of any corporation, partndship, or association 17.2.
in vk+iich Ho or she is directly or indirectly intercslcd, nor shall he or she have
any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Aereemenl or the
proceeds thereof.

14. SllRRFCIPIENT'S RELATION TO TIIH STATE. In the pcrfonnaiwe oflhis
Agreement the Subrecipicnt. its employees, and any subcontractor or
subgranlce of the Subiwipient arc in all respects independent contractors, ai>d
arc neither agents nor employees ofthc State. Neither the Subrecipient nor any
of its ofTtc^ employees, agents, memben, su^ontrKtprs or subgrentees,
shall have authority to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits,
wrinnen's compensation or emoluments provided by the- State to its
employees.

15. ACSlfiNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Subrccipienl shall ̂ assign,
or otherwise transfer any interest in thb Agreement without the prior written
consent of the Slate. ' None of the Project Work shall be subcootrBCled or
subgranted by the Subrecipicnt other than as set forth in Exhibit A without the
prior written consent of the State.

16. tndfmnIFICATIQN The Subrecipient shall dcfeiid; ilklcihnify and hold 20.
harmless the State, its officers aixl employees, from and against any and all
losses suffered by the State, iu o/Trcers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabililies or penalties asserted against the State, its officers and employ, by
or on behalf ofany person, on account of, based on. resulting from, arising out 21.
of (or which may be claimed to arise out oQ Ihe acts or emissions of the
Subrecipient or subcontiaaor, or subgniniec or other agent of the Subrecipicnt.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to.
constitute a \wiivef of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is
beteby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of
thisagrecment.

17. IN.StlRANCEAND fiOND.
17.1 The Subrecipicnt shall, at its own expense, obtain aitd maintain in force, or 23.

shall require any subcomractor, sidrgranlce or assignee performing Project
work to obtain and maintain in force, .both for the benefit of the State, tire
follovring insurance:

17.1.1 Statutory workmen's compensation and employees liability insurwc for all 24.
employees engaged in the peiforrnance of the Prqjwl. aird

17.1.2 Comprehensive public liability insumnce against all claims of bodily injuries,
death or properly danrage, in amounts not less than SI ,(X)0,000 per occurrcnec
and 12,000.000 aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incidenl, turd
SSOO.OOO for properly damage in any one incident; and

22.

The policies dcseribcd in subparagiaf^. 17,1 of this paragraph shall be the
standard form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable to the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New
Hampshire. Each policy sirall contain a clause prohibiting canceltation or
modification of the jrolicy earlier than ten (10) days after written notice thereof
has been received by the State.
WAIVER QF DRl^CH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions
hereof after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event
of Default sl«n be deemed a waiver of any provisions haeof No such failure of
waiver shall be deemed a svaivcr of the right of the State to enforce each and all
of the provisions hereof-upon any further or other default on Ihe part of the
Subrecipient.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party .shall be.deemed to
have bccn;duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail,
postage prepoid, in,a United States Post Office addressed to the. parties at the •
addre!^ first above given. '
AMENDMENT. This Agrcemoil may be amended, svalvcd or discharged only
by an Instrumail in rvriting signed by the parties hereto and only after approval
of such amendment, waiver or disclvugc' by tiK Governor and Council of the
State ofNesv Hampshire, if required or by die signing Stoic Agency.
CONSTRUCTtON OF AGRKFMFNT AND TERMS. Tliis Agreemert shall 1*
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are
used only as a matter of eonvenierrcc.and arc not to be considered a part of this
Agreement or to be used in detennhiing the intend of the parties hereto.
•nnRD PARTIES. "Ihe parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer-any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. Hiis Agreement, which may be executed in a numlw
ofcounterparts, ewh of %vhich shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreemdit and understanding l)etwTcn the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional provisions set forth in Exhibit C
hereto arc incorporated as part of this agreement.

Rev. 9(2015
Subrecipient lnttinl(s)
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EXHIBIT A

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. Waypoint as Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant from the New Hampshire Department
of Justice (DOJ) for expenses incurred and services provided for activities involving the
implementation of the Family Ties Inside and Out Project with the Department of
CoiTections.

2. 'Fhe Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on.budgeted expenditures
described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved expenditui'e reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifreen (15) days
following the end of the current quarterly activities; Expenditure reports submitted later
than tlmty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and.out of
compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January I, the first quarterly
report is due on April 15"' or 15 days after the close of(he first quarter ending on March
31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state funds and match if provided ̂ d to produce those documents upon request of this,
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation shall.be maintained for at least three (3) years afrer the close of the

Federal Grant.

4. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ.. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and eveiy attempt
shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

5. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to;
NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

.  Concord, NH 03301

603-271-8090orThomas.Kaempfer@doj.nh.gov.

litialsSubrecipient Initials
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EXHIBIT B

-METHOD OF PAYMENT-

L. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampsliire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not
exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awar ded an amount not to exceed $626,089 of the
total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approyal.to 09/30/2023, with
approv^ expenditure reports. This shall be contingent on continued fede!*al
funding and program performance,

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be resjwnrible for any expenses or costs incurred
under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval, nor after 09/30/2023.
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EXHIBIT C

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

1. Subrecipient shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and
specifications detailed in the Special Conditions, which ai-e subject to annual review.
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EXHIBIT C

2020-IG-BX-00d2
SPECIAL CONOrnONS

1. Requirements of the awaixl; remedies for non-compliance or for materiallx false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct
during the period of pcrfonnance also is a material requirement of this awards

Limited Exceptions. In certain special circumstances, the U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ")
may determine that it will not enforce, or enforce only in part, one or niore requirements
otherwise applicable to the award. Any such exceptions rcgarding cnforccmcni, including any
such exceptions made during the period of performance, are (or will be during tlic period of
performance) set out through the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP") webpage entitled "Legal
Notices: Special circumstances as to particular award conditions"
(ojp.gov/funding/Expiore/LcgalNoticcs-AwardRcqts.htm), and incorporated by reference into
the award.

By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the recipient, the authorized recipient
ofTlcial accepts all material requirements of the award, aiid specifically adopts, as if
personally executed by the authorized recipient official, all assurances or certifications
submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of
performance.

Failure to comply with one or rhore award requirements -r whether a condition set out in full
below, a condition incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification related to
conduct during the award.period - may result in OJP taking appropriate action with respect to
tlic recipient and the award. Among other things, the OJP may withhold award funds, disallow
costs, or suspend or terminate the award. DOJ, Including OJP, also may take other legal action
as appropriate.

Any materially false,.fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to
this award (or concealment or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal
prosecution (iricliidihg under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/of 1621, and/or 34 U.S.G. 10271-10273), and
also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and adininislrative remedies for false claims or
othehvise (including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be Invalid or unenforceable by its
terms, that provision shall first be applied with a limited coristruction so as to give it the maximum
effect permitted by law. Should it be held, instead, that the provision is utterly invalid or -
unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable.from this award. Applicability of Part 200
Uniform Requirements

2. Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrative Requirement, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirerhents in 2
C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the
"Part 200 Uniform Requirements") apply to this PY 2020 award from OJP.

The Part 200 Unifonn Requirements were-first adopted by.DOJ on December 26,2014. If
this FY 2020 award supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under the same award
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number (e.g., funds awarded during or before December 2014), the Part.200 Uniform
Requirements apply witii respect to all funds under that award number (regardless of the
award date, and regardless of whether derived from the initial award or a supplemental
award) that are obligated on or after the acceptance date,of this FY 2020 awai-d.

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to
OTP awards and subawards ("subgrants"), see the OJP website at
hltps://ojp.gov/funding/Part200UnifonnRcquiremcnls.htm.

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any
subrecipienl ("subgrantee") at any tier) miist retain -- typically for a period of 3 years from
the date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF 425), unless a different retention
period applies - and to which the recipient (and any subrecipienl ("subgrantee") at any tier)
must provide access, include performance measurement information, in addition to the
financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records
indicated at 2 C.F.R. 200.333.

in the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared
or distributed by OJP that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from. the
provisions of the. Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the recipient is to contact OJP promptly for
clarification.

3. Compliance with DOJ Gnuits Financial Guide

References to the IX)J Grants Financial Guide arc to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as
posted on the OJP website (currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide" available at
.https://ojp.gbv/financialguide/DdJ/indcx.htm), including any updated version, that may be
posted during the period of performance. The recipient agrees to comply with the DOJ Grants
Financial Guide.

4. Reclassificalion of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United Slates Code

On September 1,2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the
U.S. Code were editorially rcclassified (that is. mqv.cd and renumbered) to a new Title 34,
entitled "Crime Control and Law EnforcemenL" The reclassification encompassed a
number of statutory provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that Is, OJP.grants and
cooperative agreements), ihcludihg many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the
U.S. Code.

Effective as of September 1,2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory provision
that has been redassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code Is to be read as a reference to that
statutory provision as redassified to Title 34. This rule of construction specifically includes
references set out in award conditions, references set out In material incorporated by reference
through award conditions, and references set out in other award requirements.

5.' Required training for.Point of Contact and all Financial Points of Contact

Both the Point of Contact (POC) and all Financial Points of Contact (FPOCs) for this award
must have successfully completed an "OJP financial raanagemcnl and grant administration
training" by 120 days after the date of the recipient's acceptance of lite award. Successful
completion of such a training on or after January 1,2018, will satisfy this condition.

In the event that cither the POC or an FPOC.for this award changes during the pei iod of
performance, the new POC or FPOC must have successfully corhpieted an "OJP financial
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management and grant administration training" by 120. calendar days after t- (1) the date of
OJP's approval of the "Change Grantee Contact" CAN (in the case of a new POC), or (2) the
date the POC enters information on the new FPOC in CMS (in the case of a new FPOC).
Successful completion of such a training on or after January 1,2018, will satisfy this
condition.

A list of OJP trainings that OJP will consider "OJP fmancial managerhcnt and ̂ nt
administration training" for purposes of this condition is available at
https://www.ojp.gov/training/fints.htm. All trainings that satisfy this coiiditibn include a
session on grant fraud prcvaition and detection.

Tlie recipient should anticipate that OJP will immediately withhold ("freeze") award
funds if the recipient fails to comply with this condition. The recipient's failure to comply
also may lead OJP to impose additional appropriate conditions oh Utis award.

6. Requirements related to "de rainimis" indirect cost rate

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law
to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(f), and that elects to
use the "dc minimis" indirect cost rate, must advise OJP in writing of both Its eligibility and-its
election, and must comply witlt all associated requirements in the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements. The "de rhinitnis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs
(MTDC) as defmed by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

7. Requirement to report potentially diiplicative funding

If the recipient currently has other active awar^ds of federal funds, of if the recipient receives any
other award of .federal funds during the period of performance for this award, the recipient
promptly must determine.whether funds from any of those other federal awards have been, are
being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the Identical cost items for which
funds are provided under this award. If so, the recipient must promptly notify the DOJ awarding
agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) In writing of the potential duplication, and, if so requested by
the DOj awarding agency, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-proiect-scope grant
adjustment notice (GAN) to eliminate any inappropriate duplication of funding. .

Requirements related to System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requifcnients

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award
Management (SAM), cuirently accessible at https://www.sam.gov/. This includes applicable
requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as.maintaining the currency of
infoimation in SAM.

The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgr^ts")
to first-tier subrccipients (first-tier "subgrontees"), Including restrictions on subawarcls
to entities that do not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the unique entity identifier
required for SAM registration.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are
posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/fundmg/Explorc/SAM.htm (Award condition:
System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal Identifier Requirements), and arc
incorporated by reference here.
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This condition does not appiy to an award to an individuai who received the award as a natural
person {I.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or operate
in his or her name).

9. Employment eligibility verificalion for hiring under the award

1. The recipient (and any subrccipicnt at any tier) rnust-

A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United Slates that is or
will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds, the recipient (or any subrecipient)
properly verifies the employment eligibility of the individual who is being hired, consistent
with the provisions oI'8 U.S.C. 1324a(aXl) and (2).

B. Notify all persons associated with the recipient (or any subrecipient) who are or will be
involved in activities under tliis award of both—

(1) this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

(2) the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(aXl) and (2) that, generally speaking, make
it unlawful, in the United States, to hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide training (to the extent nccessar>') to those persons required by this condition to
be notified of the award requiremcht for employment eligibility verification and of the
associated provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(aX I) and (2).

D. As part of the recordkccping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Unifbrm
Requirements), maintain records of all employment eligibility verifications pertinent to
compliance with ibis award condition in accordance with Form 1-9 record retention
requirements, as well as records of all pertinent notifications and tra'mings.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this
condition.

3. Allbwabic costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds
may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and.allocable costs (if any) of actions
designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. Staff involved in the hiring process

For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under this
award" specifically includes (without limitation) any and all rccijjient (or any subrecipient)
officials or other staff who arc or will be involved in the hiring process with respect to a
position that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award fiinds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify

For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of
employment eligibility, the recipient (or any. subrecipient) may choose to participate in, and
use, E-Verify (www.e-ycrify.gov), provided an appropriate person authorized to act on
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behalf of the recipient (orsubrecipient) uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify
procedures, including in the event of a 'Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a "Final
Nonconfirmation") to confirm employment eligibility for each hiring for.a position in lite
United Stales that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with"award fiinds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guain, the
Virgin Islands of the United States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.

Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any subrccipicnt at
any tier, or any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil rights
or riondiscriniinatibn law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including In paragraph 4.B.. shall be understood to relieve any
recipient, any subrccipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation
otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U.S.C. I324a(a)(l) and (2).

Questions about E-Vefify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify
visit the E-Verify website (https;//www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-
Verify@dhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email E- Verify at E-
VerifyEmployerAgeht@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before award
acceptance.

10. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PII)

The recipient (and any "subrccipicnt" at any ticQ must have written procedures in place to
respond In the event of an actual or Imminent "breach" (0MB M-17-12) if it (or a
subrccipient) - (1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores, maintains, disseminates,
discloses, or disposes of "personally identifiable mformatlon (Pll)" (2 CFR 200.79) within the
scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or (2) uses or operates a "Federal
information system" (0MB Circular A-130). The.recipient's breach procedures must include a
requU*ement to report actual or imminent breach of Pll to an OJP Program Manager no later
than 24 hours after an occurrence of an actual breach, or the detection of an imminent breach.

/

11. All subawards ("subgi-anis") must have specific federal authorization

The recipient, and any subrccipicnt ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements for authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to
agreements that - for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements - OJP
considers a "subaward" (and tliercforc docs not consider a procurement "contract").

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted.on the OJP web site at
:https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SubawardAu'thorization.htm (Award condition: AH subawards
("subgranls") must.havc specific, federal authorization), and are incorporated by reference here.

12. Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any
procurement contract that would exceed $250,000

The recipient, and any subrccipicnt ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements to obtain specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive
approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the Simplified Acquisition
Threshold (currently, $250,000). This condition applies to agreements that - for purposes of
federal grants administrative requirements ~ OJP considers a procurement "contract" (and
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therefore docs not consider a subaward).

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetltlve approach in a
procurement contract under an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at
https://oJp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProctjrement.htm (Award condition: Specific post-
award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach In a procurement contract (if contract
would exceed $250,000)), and are incorporated by reference here.

13. Unreasonable restrictions on competition under the award; association with federal government

SCOPE. Tliis condition applies with respect to any procurement of property or services that
is funded (in whole or in part) by this award, whether by the recipient or by any subrecipient
at any tier, and regardless of the dollar amount of the purchase or acquisition, the method of
procurement, or the nature of any legal instnimeht used. The provisions of this condition must
be among those Included in any subaward (at any tier).

1 . No discrlminatioir, in procurement transactions, against associates of the federal govemmeni

Consistent with the (DOJ) Part 200 Uniform Requirements - including as set out at 2 C.F.R.
200.300 (requiring awards to be ''manage[d] and adminisler[ed] in a manner so as to ensure
lltal Federal funding is expended and associated programs are implemented in full accordance
with U.S. statutory and public policy requiiements") and 200.319(a) (generally requiring "[ajll
procurement transactions [to] be conducted in a manner providing full, and open cpmpeiilidn"
and forbidding.practiccs "restrictive of competition," such as "[p]lacing unreasonable
requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to do business" and taking [a]ny aibitrary
action in the procurement process") - no recipient (or subrecipient, at any tier) may (in any
procurement transaction) discriminate against any person or entity on the basis of such pcreon
or entity's status as an "associate of tlic federal government" (or on the basis of such person or
entity's status as a parent,,aftiliate, or subsidiary of such an associate), except as expressly set
out in 2 C.F.R.

,200.319(a) or as specifically authorized by USDOJ.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include nionitofing of subrecipient compliance with this
condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any otiicr federal program, award funds
may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (If any) of actions
designed to ensure cpmpliance with this condition.

4. Rules Pf consti-uction

A. the terni "associate of the federal government" means any person or entity engaged or
employed (in the past or at present) by or on behalf of the federal government - as an
employee, contractor or subcontractor (at any lief), grant recipient or -subrecipient (at any
tier), agent, or otherwise - in undertaking any work, project, or activity for or on behalf of
(or in providing goods or services to or on behalf of) tlic federal government, and includes
•any applicant for such employment or engagement, and any person or entity committed by
legal instrument to undertake any such work, project, or activity (or to provide such goods or
services) in future.
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Nothing In this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any subreclpient
at any tier, or any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil
rights or nondiscrlmination law.

.14. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (mcluding
reporting requirements andOJP authority to terminate a\vard)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgraotee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements (including requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited condiict
related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the part of recipients, subrecipients
("subgrantees"). or individuals dcfmcd (for purposes of this condition) as "employees" of the
recipient or of any subrecipient.

Thc.details of the recipient's obligations related to prphibited conduct related to trafficking in
persons are posted on tite OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/rundlng/Bxplore/Pr6hibltedConduct-
Trafficking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited conduct by recipients and subrecipients related
to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate
award)), and are incorporated by reference here.

15. Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of
confefehces, meetings, trainings, and other events.

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantec") at any tier, must comply with ail.
applicable laws, regulations, policies, and official DOJ ̂ idance (including specific cost
limits, prior approval and reporting requirements, where applicable) gbyeming the use of
federal funds for expenses related to conferences (as that tcnn is defined by DOJ),
including the provision of food and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of
attendance at. such con fereqces.

Infonnation on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this
award appears in the DOJ Grants Financial Guide (cuirently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward
Requireraehts" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

16. Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

Tlie recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance.and effectiveness
of work under this award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including within
the timeframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitatipri or other applicable written
guidance. Data collection supports compliance with tlie Government Performance and Results
Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010, and other applicable laws.

17. OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or trauiing materials that the recipient - or any subrecipient ("subgrantee")
at any tier — develops or delivers with OJP award funds must adhere 16 the OJP training
Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees, available at
https://ojp.gOv/fiind.ing/lmplement/rrainingPrlnciplesForGrantees-:Subgrantees.htm.

18. Effect of failure to address audit issues

The recipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as
appropriate) may withhold award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as
determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the recipient does not satisfactorily and promptly
address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform F^uiremcnls (or
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by the terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits,
investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

19. Potcntialimposition of additional requirements

The recipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the DOJ
awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for this award, if
the recipient is designated as "high- risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee list.

20. Gompliancc with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimlnation - 28 C.F.R. Pni142

The recipient, and any suhrecipienl ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 - ,
C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart Ebf28
C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an equal employment opportunity progi-am,

21. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscriihihation - 28 C.F.R. Part 54
4

The recipient, and any subrecipieht ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimlnation on the basis of sex in certain "education
programs."

22. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 38

TheTecipicnt, and any subrccipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 38 (as may be applicable from time to time), specifically including any
applicable requirements regarding written notice to program beneficiaries and prospective
program beneficiaries.

Currently, arhong other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms
"  of discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious

belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice. Part 38, currently, also sets
but rules and requirements that pertain to recipient and subrccipient ("subgrantee")
organizations that engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and
requirements that pertain to recipients and subrccipients that are faith-based or religious
organizations.

The text of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 is available via the Electronic Code of Federal Regulations
(currently accessible at https://www.ccfT.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR?page=browse),.by browsing to
Title 28-Judicial Administration, Chapter 1, Part 38, under c-CFR "current" data.

23. Restrictions on "lobbying"

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the
recipient, or any subrccipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to
support or oppose the enacunenl. repeal, modification, or adoption of any law^ regulation, or
policy, at any level of government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may be exceptions if an
applicable federal statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise, would be
barred by law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used,by the
recipient, or any subrccipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to
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influence) a federal agency, a Member of Congress, or Congress (or an official or emplpycc
of any of them) with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or cooperative agreement,
subgranti contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing,
extending, or modifying any such award. Sec 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law
apply, including an exception that applies to Indian Iribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or
subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is to contact
OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written approval of OJP.

24. Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY 2020)
The leciplenl, and any subrecipient ("subgrantcc") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
restrictions on the use of federal funds set out In federal approprialions statutes. Pertihcht
restrictions that may be set out in applicable appropriations acts arc indicated at
httpsi//ojp.gov/funding/Explorc/FY20AppropriationsRestrlctions.htm, and are incorporated by
reference here. Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a
recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an appropriations-law
restriction, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the
express prior written approval of OJP. a

25. Reporting potential fraudj waste, and abuse, and similar misconduct

The recipient, and any subrecipients ("subgrantccs") at any tier, must promptly refer to the
DOJ OfTice of the Inspector General (DIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee,
agent, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or other person has, in connection with funds
under this awaiTj- (1) submitted a claim that violate the False Claims Act; or (2) committed
a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity,
or siniilar misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste; abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this.award
should be reported to (he OIG by"(I) online submission accessible via the OIG webpage at
https://oig.justicc.gov/hotline/contact-grants.htm (select "Submit Report Online'^; (2) mall
directed to: U.S. Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General, Investigations
Division, ATTN: Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, DC.20530;
and/or (3) by facsimile directed to the DOJ OIG Investigations Division (Aitn: Grantee
Reporting) at (202) 616-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at httos://oig.iustice.eov/hotline.

26. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subrecipient ("subgrantcc") under (his award, or entity that receives a
procurement cobtract or subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any
employee or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that
prohibits or otherwise relicts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the fcportingXib accordance
with law') of waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a
federal department or agency authorized to receive such infonnation.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this
award, to contravene requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to
classified infonnation), Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmentcd information),
or any other fohm issued by a federal department or agency governing the nondisclosure of
classified information.
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1. In accepting this award, the recipient"

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or
statements from employees or contractors thai currently prohibit or otherwise cun-ently
restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it.lcams or is.notified that it is or h^ been requiring its employees or
contractoi-s to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport
to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will
immediately stop any further obiigations of award funds, will provide prompt written
notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption
oO such obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

2. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgrants"),
procurement contracts, or both-

, a. it represents that—

(1) It has detennincd that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may or will
revive award funds (whether through a subaward ("subgrant"), procurement contract, or
subcontract under a procurement contract) either requires or has required internal
confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contractors that cunently prohibit
or otherwise currently restrict (of purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from
reporting waste^ fraud, or abuse as d^cribed above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support this
representation; and

c. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrccipient, contractor,.or subcontractor entity
that receives funds under this award'is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to
execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or
restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any further
obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to the
federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if
expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

11. Compliance \vith 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including pi-ohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

Tlie recipient (aiid any subrecipient at any tier) must comply wilJi, and is subject to, all applicable
provisions of 41
U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under specified circumstances,
discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the employee's disclosure of information
related to gross mismanagement of a federal ̂ nt, a gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of
authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger to public health or safely,
or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

The recipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native
language of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this
award, the recipient is to contact the 1X)J awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for
guidance.
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28. Encouragement of pol icies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While
Driving," lA Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1,2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipienls
("subgrajitces") to adopt and enforce policies banning employees from text messaging while
driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this award, and.to
establish workplace safely policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to
decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers.

29. Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-

making agency outside of DOJ If the recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-

making agency outside of DOJ, currently or at any time
during the course of tiie period of pcrfonnance under this award, the recipient must disclose
that fact and certain related information to OJP by email at
OJP.ComplianccReporting@ojp.usdoj.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high risk includes
any status under which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the
recipient's past performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the recipient.
Ilie recipient's disclosure must include the following: 1. The federal awarding agency tltat
currently designates the recipient high risk, 2. The date the recipient was designated high risk,
3. The high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone number, and
email address), and 4. The reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding
agency.

30. Tlie recipient agrees to submit a final report at the end of this award documenting all relevant
project activities during the entire period of support under this award. This report will include
detailed infonnation about the project(s) fund^, including,^but not limited to, information
about how the funds were actually used for each pujpose.area, data to support statements of
progress, and data concerning individual results and outcomes of funded projects reflecting
project successes and impacts. The final report is due no later than 90 days following the close .
of this award period or the expiration of any extension periods. This report will be submitted
to the Office of Justice Programs, on-line tlirougli the Internet at https://grants.ojp;usdoj.gov/.

31. The recipient shall submit semiannual progress reports. Progress reports shall be submitted
within 30 days after the end of the reporting periods, which are June 30 and December 31, for
the life of the award. These rcpoits will be submitted to the Office of Justice Programs, on-line
through the Internet at https://grants.ojp.usdoj.gov/.

32. The recipient agrees to report data on the grantee's OJJDP-approvcd performance measures as
part of the semi-annual categorical progress report. This data will be submitted on line at
OJJOP's Performance Measures website (https://Djjdp.gov/grantces/pm/lndex.html) by July 31
and January 31 each year, for the duration of the award. Once data entry is complete, the grantee
will be able to create and download a "Performance Measures Data Report." This document is
to be included as an attachment to the grantee's narrative categorical assistance progress report
submitted in CMS for each reporting period.

33. With respect to this award, federal funds may not be used to pay cash compensation (salary .
plus bonuses) to any employee of the award recipient at a rate that exceeds 110% of the
maximum annual salary payable to a member of the federal government's Senior Executive
Service (SES) at an agency with a Certified SES Performance Appraisal System.for that year.
(An award recipient may compensate an employee at a higher rate, provided the amount in
excess of this compensation limitation is paid with non-federal funds.)
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This limilation on compensation rates allowable under this award may be waived on
an individual basis at the discretion of (he OJP ofTicial indicated in the program
announcement under which this award is made.

34. FFATA reporting; Siibawards and executive compensation

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements to report first-tier subawards
("subgrants") of $25,000 or more.and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total
compensation of the fivemost highly compensated executives of the recipient and first-tier
subrecipicnls (fii^t-tier "subgrantees") of award funds. The details of recipient
obligations, which derive from the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of
2006 (FFATA), are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/runding/Explore/FFATA.htm
(Award condition; Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation), and are incorporated
by reference here.

This condition, including its reporting requirement, does not apply to—(I) ah awaidpf less
than $25,000, or (2) an award made to an individual who received the award as a natural
person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or
operate in his or hername).

%

35. Recipient integrity and performance matters: Requirement to report information on
certain civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings to SAM and FAPIIS

The recipient must comply with any and all applicable requirements regarding reporting,of
Information on civil, crimmal, and.administrative proceedings connected with (or connected
to the performance oO either this OJP award or any other grant, cooperative agreement, or
procurement contract froin the federal government! Under certain circumstances, recipients of
OJP awards are required to report iriformatioh about siich proceedings, through the federal
System for Award Management (known as "SAM"), to the designated federal integrity and
pcrfonnancc system (currently, "FAPIIS").

The details of recipient obligations regarding the required reporting (and updating) of
information on certain civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings to (he federal
designated integrity and i^rfonnancc system (currently, "FAPJIS") within SAM are
posted on the OJP web site at https;//ojp.gov/ftjndmg/FAPHS.htm (Award condition;
Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters, including Recipient Reporting to FAPIIS),
and arc incorporated by reference here.
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EXHIBIT D

EEOP Reporting

[> AUT^A^T A\7T?!i1/QW [responsible official], certify that

AJ T [recipient] has completed theEEO reporting tool'
cerlincatioi

form at: httns://oip.gov/about/ocr/faq econ.litm on ^ / (s ̂  [Dale]

And that TA' [ responsible official] has completed the
EEOP ^

training at https://oiD.gov/about/ocr/ocr-training-videos/video-ocr-trainint2.htm on:

\(/\ \) IT[} [date]
I further certify that:

\/J ficy Fl'i A t [recipient] will comply
with applicable federal civilrights laws that prohibit discrimination in employment and in the
delivery of services.

Signature: Date: \\Ao/?.o
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EXHIBIT E

Non-supplnntirig Certification

Supplanting defined

Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not
replace tlipse funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be.the
subject of application review, as well as prc-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If
there is a potential presence of supplanting, the applicant or grantee will be required to supply
documentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons
other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written
ceitificalion may be requested by the awarding agency or recipierit agency stating that Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local
funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part II,
Chapter 3)
http://www.oip.usdoi.gov/financialguide/Dart2/part2chap3.htm.

Supplanting and job retention

A gi'antee may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the federal money, would
be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retainjobs, it must be able to
substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be, but is not

limited. tOj one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a county or
municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced when
maldng determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the femiinated
positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or local funds.

The \jO A - Nj T (Applicant) certifies that any funds awarded

through grant number 2d20-IG-BX-0002 sh^l be used to supplement existing fimds for

program activities and will not replace (supplant) nonfederal funds that have been appropriated

for the purposes and goals of tlie grant.

The VfA AT (Applicant) understands that supplanting

violations may rcsult.in a range of penalties, including but not limited to suspension of fliture

funds under this program, suspension or debarment fî om federal grants, fecbupment of monies,

provided under this grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

PrintedN^ieandTitle:^^fl^^A TtTXy/V* (Aio.'fjlLAA'l'
Signature: A
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EXHfBTT F

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND
OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

REQUIREMENTS

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they
are required to attest. Applicants should also review the instructions for certification included in
the regulations before completing this form. The certifications shall be treated as a material
representation of fact upon which leiiance will be placed when the U.S. Department of Justice
("Department'') determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.

I. LOBBYING

As required by31 U.S;C. § 1352. as implemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, the Applicant certifies
and assures (to the extent, applicable) the following:
(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or Will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Applicant, to any person for influencing or attempting.to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification
of any Federal gr^t or cooperative agreement;

(b) If tlie Applicant's request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other
than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any pei*s6n for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an ernployeC of a member, of Congress in connection with this
Federal grant or cooperative-agi-eemcnt, the Applicant shall complete and submit Standard Form
- LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" in accordance with its (and any DOJ awarding
agency's) instiiictions; and

(c) The Applicant shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents, for all subgranis and procurement contracts (and their subconti'acts) funded with
Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of
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recipients of such subgrants and procurement contracts (or their subcoiitractors) are rnade and
filed in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352.

2. DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

A. Pur^ant to Department regulations on nonprocurement debarment and suspension
implemented at 2 C.F.R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Applicant certifies,
with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier "covered transaction," as defined at 2
C.F.R. § 2867.20(a), that neither it nor any of its principals—
(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered agaunst it. for
commission of finud or a criminal offense in connection with pbtairiing, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction or private agreement or
transaction;

violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or cormnission of embe22lement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction ofjustice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly affects its
(or its principals') present responsibility;

(c) is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
federal, State, tribal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(b) of this certification; and/or

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tiibal, or local) terminated for cause or default.

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application. Where the Applicant or any of its principals was
convicted, within a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal violation
under any Federal law, the Applicant also must disclose such felony criminal conviction in
writing to the Department (for OJP Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov;
for Oy W Applicantis, to OVW at OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS
at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov), unless such disclosure has already been made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A. If the Applicant is a corporation, it certifies either that (1) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax.liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative
remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is npt being paid in a timely mamier
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pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or
(2) the corporation has provided written notice of such an unpaid tax Liability (or
liabilities) to tlie Department (for OJP

Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Applicants, to OVW at
-OVW.GFMD@usdpj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application.

4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDrVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650:
A. The Applicant certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, provide a drug-fi-ee
workplace by—

(a) Publishing.a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an oh-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Applicant's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace;

(c) .Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment imder the award, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of tlie employee's conviction for a violation of.a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
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Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such
convicted employee to the Department, as follows:

For COPS award recipients - COPS Office, 145 N Street,NE, Washington, DC. 20530;
For OJP and OVW award recipients - U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Proginms,
ATTN: Control Desk. ,810-7th Street, N.W.. Washington, D.G. 20531.

Notice shall include the identification numberfs) of each affected award; ,
(f) Taking one of the follo wing actions^ within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to aiiy employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate pei-sonnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination^ consistent with the requii'cments of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to paiticipate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

(g)Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (0-

If you arc unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to this
certification.

Al ̂  AnA""? . ji-f /CbO
Namcind Title of Head of Agency

\\/\o/u
Date

L
Signature

Name and Address of Agency
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that WAYPOINT is a New

Hampshire Nonprorii Corporation registered to transact business In New Hanipsliire on September 25, 1914.1 Airther certify that

ad fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 62585

Certificate Nuniba-: 0004898322

5^

5?
uu

^3

fN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I Iiercto my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Stale ofNew Hampshire,

this 22nd day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Stale



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1. _KENNETH SHELDON. Board Chair . do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of Ihe Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of WAYPOINT .
(Agency Name)

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 12/4/18_
(Dale)

RESOLVED: That this corporation enters Into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting through its
Department of Justice.

RESOLVED: That the PRESIDENT AND CEO_
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

BORJA ALVAREZ DE TOLEDO is the duly elected PRESIDENT/CEO
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 10th day of Noveml>er, 2020.

Kenneth R. Sheldon. Board Chair

NH DHHS. Office of Business Operations 1 ■ 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



ACOpcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE(MIM>0<YYVY)

11/10/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIRCATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

IMPORTANT: If the certincato holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subjccl to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
th|« cnrtifiratn Haas no! confer rights to the certificate holder In ileu of such endorsements),

PROOUCER

FIAI/Cross insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

CONWT Andrea Nlddln

(603)669-3218 (603)645-4331
anlcklin®aossagency.com

MSUHERISIAFFOROMG COVERAGE NAICS

wsuRFRA- Philadelphia indemnity tns Co 18058

INSURED

Waypoint

PoBox44B

Manchester NH 03105

MRIIRER a • Granite State HeaRh Care and Human Services Self-
■N<uiRf>Rr- TravetofsCasuaRy 4 Surety Co of America 31194

INSURER 0:

tNSURERE:

INSURERF:

InSk
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY ^^00
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONOmON OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH ̂ IS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
FYCII L-^IONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCB5 BY PAID CLAIMS.

POUCVEFP ■ ' ' "
TYPG0FINSURANC6 Rtcum POLICY NUMBER

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UAOtUTY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

OEjn.AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:
X POOCY I I LOC

OTHER; Prote^Pnal LlaMKty
AUTDMOQa.e UABtUTY

X

X

ANYAUrO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
H«ED
AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA UAQ

EXCESS UAS

DEO

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

X OCCUR

CLAIM&MAOE

X RETENTION S
WORKERS COMPENSATION
ANDEUFUJYERS-UAeajTY y/N
AMY PROPRIETORAWRTNEWEXECUTIVE rTH
OFPCERACMBER EXCLUDED? | " |
(HM^t^biNH)

^Mcrfb# untfvf
:SCRtPTION OF 0P6RATI0MS bMao

FIdeEty & Fofgefy

N/A

PHPK215135B

PHPK2151341

PHUB72a723

HCHS20200000242 (3a.) NH

105912106

iMM/DoirYrYi

07/01/2020

07/01/2020

07/01/2020

02/01/2020

04/01/2020

tMMjPOfYYYYI

07rt)l/2021

07/01/2021

07/01/2021

02/01/2021

04/01/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO flLMILD
PREMISES (E« cccunwl

MED £XP {Any eft* parton)

PERSONAL A AOV INJURY

GENERALACGREOATE

PROCXXiTS . COMWOPAOO

Ageregate- Pro! Bab
tOMUIl/EO SINGLE UMIT
rei>ecl<l»nQ

DOOLYINAIRY (PMptraen)

BOOtLY INJURY (Ptr KeMM)
FrOPErIVOaMXGE
fp«f »ed(lenO

Medical payments

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

5
ŜTATUTE

; OTH-
lES_

ELEACHACCtOENT

e.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

E.U DISEASE-POUCYLfttfT
UmK

Deductible

1.000.000

100.000

5.000

J 1,000.000
2.000,000

2.000,000

$ 1,000,000

s 1,000,000

I 5,000

, 4,000,000
4,000,000

1,000,000

1.000.000

1.000.000

500.000

5,000

DESCRIPTXJM OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101. AddMNiM Romirtc* SebNM*. m»t b* «lt*l»d If aot* tt>aem H

New Hampshire Department Of Justice
33 Capitol Street

Concord NH 03301
i  1

SHOULD ANY OF THE /L80VE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE OaiVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD nsmo and logo are registered marks of ACORO



Internal Revenue Service Department of the Treasury

District
Dlre^

10 M«(roT«d) C«ntor

62S Futtoft St.. Brooklyn. NY 11201

Child & Family Scrvice^s
c/o Accounts Payable
99 Hanover -S^treet

Manchester, NH 03101-2203

Person to Contact; Patricia Holub

Telephone Numb«^ (713) 488-2333

Refer Reply to; EP/EOrCa'

Dste: HAY 0 D 1997

EIN: 02-0222164

dear Sir or Madam:

Reference is made to your request for verification of the
tax exempt status of Child & Family Services.

A determination or ruling letter issvted to an organisation
granting exemption under the Internal Revenue Code remains in
effect until the tax exempt status has been terminated, revoked
or modified.

Our records indicate that exemption was granted as shown below.^

Sincerely yours

(^Patncta fffofu^
Patricia Hoiub

Manager. Customer
Service Unit

Name of Organization: Child i Family Services

Date of E.vemption Letter: November 1990

Exemption granted pursuant to section 501(c)(3J of the
Internal Revenue Code.

Foundation Ciassitication tii appj.A'-ciuiw /. ^^4,

"foundation as you are an organization dBSCribcd ID uGCtion
509»a>(2) of the Internal Revenue Code.



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

OFFICE OF SECRETARY OF STATE

CERTIFIED COPY

I, David M. Scaolan, Deputy Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that the attached is a true copy
of AMENDMENT(lO/i7/2018), as a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation of WAYPOINT previously CHELD AND FAMILY

SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN'S AID SOCIETY, NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN'S

AID & PROTECTIVE SOCIETY as filed in tliis office and held in tlie custody of the Secretary of Stale.

Business (D: 62S8S

Certificate Number 4198435

SI

tOm

A

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of tltc State of New Hampshire,

this 17lh day of October A.D. 2018.

David M. Scanlan

Deputy Secrctat7 of State

Page 1 of I



of ̂Eftr ̂' nmpoi^ixe
Reoordtng fee; $25.00
Use black print or type.

Dale Filed: 10/17/2018 10:15:00 AM

Fflective Date: 1 l/16/20l8 04:30d» PM

Filing ff:4l9S432 Pages:!
Business ID: 62S8S

William M. Gu'doer

SecrelBiy of Stale
State of New Hampshire

RSA 292:7

AFFIDAVIT OF AMENDMENT

OF

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire

A NEW HAMPSHIRE NONPROFIT CORPORATION

I. William Conrad . the undersigned, being the Choifmon of iho Board of Trusteei

(Note 1) of the above named New Hampshire nonproflt corporation, do hereby certify that a meeting was

held for the purpose of amending the articles of agreement'and the following amendment(s) were

approved by a majority vote of the corporation's Trustees (Note 2)

The name of the Corporation shall be changed to: Waypoint

Effective as of November 16. 2018.

(ir more apace b needed, attach addlUonel sheetfs}.]

A true record, attest:

Print Of type name:

Title:

Dale signed:

(Signature)

William Conrad

ChaifTnan of the Board of Trustees

7 As7/ f

Notes: 1. Clerk, secretary or other officer.

2. Enter either "Board of Directors' or Trustaes'.

DISCLAIMER: All documwts filed with the Corporation Division become puWIc records and wCD be available for
public inspection In either tangible or el6Ctror\ic form. .

Maning Address - Corporation Division, NH Dopt of State, 107 N Main St, Rm 204, Concord, NH 03301-4089
Physicol Location - State House Annex, 3rd Floor, Rm 317, 26 Capitol SL Concord, NH

Fllw B copy with Clerk of the town/elfv of the Drlncloa! Place of business.
FermNF-3 (0/2015)



Boija Alvarez de Toledo, IVI,Ed.

464 Chestnut St, Manchester, NH. 03106/ 603.762-6442

alvarozdetoledob@waypolntnh.org

Professional Profile

•  A'seasoned loader wllh more lhan 18 years of senior level non-pn3fIl management oxperience.
•  Strong business acumen with emphasis on developing processes ta ensure the alignment of

strategy, operattons, and outcomes with a strength based apprcadi to loada-ehip development
•  Collabofatlve leader using systemic and etralegte framework In program development, supervision

end conflict resolution.

Professional Experience

Waypofnt, fofmeriy ChUd and Family Services of Now Hampshire
Manchester, NH Decemb0r2O13- Present

^ President and CBO

•  Responsible for program planning and development, Insuring that Waypolnt meets the community
needs.

•  Advance the public profile of Waypofnt by developing Innovatlvo approaches and buildlrjg producUve
relatlOTshlps with goNmfnmenf, regional and national consHtuencies.

•  Aols as advisor- to the Board of Directors and mafrilains relationships with the regional Boards
•  Resporrsible for all aspects of hnanciai planiring, sustalnabllify and oversight of Waypoinfs assets
• Work wllh Development staff and Board of Directors to design and implement all fundraislng

activities. Including cuflrvation and solicltalion of key Individuals, fbundations and corporations

RIverafde Community Care
Dedham, MA 2009-2013

- Division Director, Child and Family Sarvtcos
•  Responsible for strategic vision, planning and Implementatton of the programmatic, operational and

financial sustalnabllity of a $17f^ division with more than 300 empbyees.
•  In partnership with TTie Guidanco Center, Inc.'s board of directors, played leadership role In

successfully merging with Riverside Community Care, tlirough a process tliat Involved strategic
planning, analysis and seloctlon of a viablo partner.

•  Provide supervision to managers using a strenglh based approach and a collaborattve coorfilng
mode! to leadership development.

The Guidanco Center, Inc.
Cambridge, MA 1998 - 2009

Chief Operating Officer 2007 - 2009
•  Hired InltlaHy as Director of an inlensrvo home-based family program and through successive

promotions became responsible for all operations in the organization.
•  Responsible for supervision of Division Directors, strategic planning and development of new

initiatives.

•  Developed strategio reiallonshlps with state and local fonders, and partnered wlih community
agonclea to support the healthy growth of children and families.

Private Practice in Psychotherapy and Clinical Consultation
Madrid, Spain 1992-1998



Univcrsldad Ponfiflcta de Cotnillas
Madrid, Spain _ ̂ ggg

'^Afifunct Faculty
•  Taught graduate level courses In Family and Couples Therapy program
•  Pracllcum program supervisor Supervised ftst year Master's Degree students through live

supervision in (he treatment of multi-problem families.

Cciitro M6dico-P8lcopedag6gfco
Madrfd, Spain 1994 -1997

'^Clinical CoordtnatorfDh'Qctor of Training.
•  Member of a muItWisdpllnary team that provided assessment and treatment to families victims of

lerrorlsm and had developed Post Traumallc Stress Disorder.

ITAD (Institute for Alcohol and Drug Troafmont),
Madrid, Spain 199,. ,994

" Senior Drug and Alcohol Counselor, Drug and Alcohol Program
•  Provided evaluation and treatment for diomloally dependent adults and their families.
~ Senior Family Theraplsi, Couples and Family Therapy Program
• Worked as a famgy therapist In the evaluation and treatment of adolescents and families.

Charles Rfvor Health Management
Boston, MA 1889- 1991

~ Senior Family Therapist, Homo Based Family Treatmoni Program.

Education

Graduate Certificate of Business

University of Massachusetts, Lowell, 2000.
Master'© Degree Jn Education
Counseling Pcyohology Program. Boston Universlly, 1909.

In Clinical Psychology
Unhrersldad Pontlflcla do Comlilas, Madrid, Spain. 1980

Publications

2009 Ayers.S & Alvarez de Tdodo, B. Community Based Mental Health wilh Children and Families In A
R. Roberts (Ed.) .Social WorkePs Dosk Referonoo {2"^ od.),N8w York: Oxford University Press 2009

2006 Topical Discussion: Advancing CommunUySasBd Clinical Practico and Roseamh: Learning In t'ho
Field. Presented at the 19"^ Annual Research Conference: A System of Care for Children's Mental
Heallh: Expanding the Research Base, February 2006, Tampa, FL.

2001 Lyman, D.R.; Slegel, R.; Alvarez de Toledo, B.; Ayers, S.; Mikula. J. How lo be little and slUl think
big: Creating a grass rools,evidenGo based system of care. Symposium presented at the Iri®*
Annual Research Conference In Children's Mental Heallh, Research and Training Center for
Children's Mental Health. February 2001, Tampa, FL

2006 Lyman. D.R., B.Alvarez de Toledo, The Ecology of Intensive community based intervention. In
Llghtburn, A.. P. Sessions. Handbook of Community Based Crmlcal Practfce. Oxfbid University
Press, 2006, England.

2001 Lyman, D.R., B. Alvarez da Toledo (2001) Risk factors and fmatment outoomes in a strategic
Intensive family pmgram. In Newman, .C, C. Liberton, K. Kutash and R. Friedman, (Eds) A System
of Care for Children's Mental Health: Expanding (he Research Base (2002), pp. 65-58. Research
and Training Center for Children's Mental Heallh, University of South Florida, Tampa. FL

1994-98 Research papers and professional presentations in peer reviewed journals In Spate

Languages

Fluent In Spanish, French and KaBan.



Core Skills:

Gina Corey Ferrante, C.P.A.

Windham,NH 03087

gina.ferraate/gloutloQic.com

System

Integration
Internal Controls

Audit

Preparation

Policies and

Procedures

Budget

Preparation and
Analysis

Streamlining

accounting

processes

Work.Expcrience:

Lowell, MassachusettsCommunity Teamwork. Inc. 2013-2019

Dii-ector of Finance aud Accounting

Repoiting to tlic CFO, manage staff in the accounting department and coordinating
annual budget for $90 inilJion agency providing housing, "WIC, Eneigy and Child Care
Services to low-income individuals

•  Prepare agency cost allocations
•  Ensure compliance with agency's 150 federal, state and private conti-acts
•  Prepare agency budgets and analyze financial results
•  Analyze and improve accounting processes and fiscal conti-ols throughout the

agency

•  Ovei-secs the financial management of the organization and monitoring of
organizatioual performance and fiscal controls

•  Coordinate Annual Audit and review Accounting Pronouncements for
applicability

MicbaelF. Reillv. PC 2006-2013 Havcrhili, Massachusetts

Audit Manager

•  Planned and managed the audit process for several non-public companies and not-
for-profit organizations including tlie Northern Essex Community College
Foundation, ARC of Noilhcast Haverhill and Simple Living, Inc.

• Worked with clients to help improve efficiencies and establish accounting
controls

•  Prepared fax returns for individuals and non-public and not-for-profit corporations



Gina Corey Ferrante, CJ?.A. Page 2

Digital EQuipmcnt Corporation 1987-1992 Acton, Massachusetts
Accounting Systems Analyst

• Designed and installed accounting systems for Digital and Digital customers
Internal Auditor

Audited departments internal to Digital in preparation for the outside auditors

Epsilon Data Management 1985-1987 Burlington, Massachusetts
Director ofAccountlug
" Managed the monthly/quarterly closing process
•  Prepared financial statements ̂ /S, P&L, & Cash flows)
"  Performed analytical analysis
• • Managed, supported and prepared the quarterly and year-end audit schedules

Ryder Svsteins. Inc. 1984-1985 Miami, Florida
Manager of Accountlug
' Managed the monthly/quarterly closing process

■  Prepared financial statements (B/S, P&L, & Cash flows)
•  Paformcd analytical analysis
•  Prepared the quartcily and year-end audit schedules

Price Wateihouse 1981-1984 Miami, Florida

Senior Acconutant

•  Planned, and managed the audit process for several non-public companies
including tlie Miami Dolphins, and area construction companies

•  Prepared tax returns for individuals and small corporations during tlic busy season

Education:

Florida International Unlversitv

Masters of Science in Taxation

University ofMiami

BBAAccounting

Systems: Abila Fund Accounting, Office (Word, Excel, PowerPoint), Outlook,
QuickBooks, Profit



COLLEEN WI. IVES

2605 Elm Street • Manchester, New Hampshire 03104

(603) 630-8239 • clves26Q5faiamall.com

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Proactive executive with a formidabie record of driving systemic change and business expansion. Nimbie
administrator with strategic pianning, business process improvement, cost controis and performance management
experience. Collaborative leader with inspirational and decisive management style who achieves exceptional,
rather than expected, results. Catalyst for open communications towards a climate of learning to benefit company
and individuals.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

WAYPOINT, Manchester, NH * 2018-PresGnt
Statevs^de private nonprofit that works to advance the well-being of children and families through an array of
community-based services.

Chief Operating Officer
»  Oversees ail aspects of program delivery Including; fiscal and personnel management, quality assurance and

program development

ROCKPORT MORTGAGE CORPORATION, Gloucester, MA • 2008-2017
Leading national lender of US.Housing & Urban Development insured commercial loans in healthcare, multlfamily
and affordable housing sectors.

Vice President, Operations & Quality Control
•  Report to principals with overall responsibility for achieving strategic objectives through oversight of the day-to-

day operations of five multi-disciplinary underwriting teams by providing support at the transactional level as
well as In the development of procedures and operating practices to match RMC's continued growth.

•  Ensure RMC'S compliance with their federally mandated Quality Control Ran through employee development
Initiatives, monitoring of RMC'S operational practices while Integrating new HUD directives into RMC'S existing
best practices.

IVES DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATES, Manchester, NH • 2005-2016
Consultancy providing strategic planning and leadership developmenl to public, private and nonprofit companies
throughout New England.

Principal
Design and facilitate customized corporate retreats, including strategic planning sesdons, executive and Board of
Directors' training and development, creation or re-affiimalion of vision, mission and values and efforts lo re-align
leadership around key priorities and future direction of the organization, integrate opportunities to shift
organizational culture to more open and candid communications.
•  Led an 18-month comprehensive change initiative that:

o Resulted In the development of a transition plan for the assimilation of an Interim Executive Director
including an operalions plan that aimed to recalibrate Ihe culture;

•  Transformed climate of accountability for a $55M diont by implementing Balanced Scorecard strategic
measurement system. Designed, coordinated arid faciiilated on-sile internal and exlernal analysis of 11 retail
locations in 9 stales, analyzing threats and weaknesses in business lo build a platform for growth.

CAREER NOTE: Concurrent with consulting enterprise (2006 - 2010), designed and taught Introductory and upper level
psychology and sociology courses at Granite State College in Concord, Manchester and Portsmouth, New Hampshire.

COLLEEN M. IVES • Page 2 • clves2605@gmaii.com



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING, Concord, NH • 2001-2005
Statewide nonprofit offering long-term care, employment, transportation, advocacy, and other community-based
services.

Acting Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer
Led internal operations, including service and program delivery, finance, human resources, fundralslng and
marketing. Transformed organization's culture by promoting a climate of excellence, systemic solutions and
learning that benefited the organization and individual employees. Evaluated operational results and facilitated
business processes and controls that promoted efficiency and Internal information flow. Developed short- and
long-range operating plans. Supported up to 14 management-level employees, staff of 90, and $13M annual
operating budget. Held complete performance management authority as well as autonomy to engage In private
and state/federal contracts.

.  Increased revenue by 78% with more effective grant administration, successful applications for new
competitive grants, initiating a comprehensive development / fundralslng plan, and Increasing the fee-for-
servlce lines of business.

•  Increased consumers served from 400 to 3,000+ Individuals within three-year period by restructuring existing
programs, developing new programs and Increasing program accountability with monthly management reports.

•  Established foundation for 36-monlh capacity building plan to enhance infrastructure and overall operations by
conducting full organizational audit and successfully presenting to Board of Directors.

•  Expanded services and leveraged long-lerm grant opportunity through company acquisition. Successfully
integrated organlzalional .cullures and business practices, including human resource policies, management
teams and compensation/benefits.

•  Recommended, designed and implemented internal controls and operating procedures for all departments
(Human Resources, Finance, Public Relations/ Development, Long-Term Care, Community Living and
Employment Services).

•  Increased efficiency, raised credibility of financial reporting and reduced headcount by Implementing slate of
the art technology with expertise of retained IT consultant.

\

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION, SERVICES FOR
BLIND AND VISUALLY IMPAIRED, Concord, NH • 1992-2000
Statewide organization providing Registry of Legal Blindness, Sight Seivices for Independent Living, Vocational
Rehabilitation and a Business Enterprise program.

Statewide Director

Managed professional staff of 8 to deliver services that included 15 statewide rehabilitative support groups, career
counseling and vending machine/food service enterprises In State and Federal buildings.
•  Awarded $1.2M 3-year federal grant to provide peer support services in 15 locations across the stale
•  Led Department to highest rank in standards and benchmarks among 7 other regional offices.
•  Enhanced team atmosphere by integrating 4 distinct statewide programs into a cohesive unit.
•  Cultivated relationships and formal partnerships with various stakeholders In the statewide network of social

and human services and employment arenas.

EDUCATION

Doctorate in Human and Organizational Systems
Master of Arts in Human Development

Fielding Graduate University, Santa Barbara, California

Master of Arts/CAGS in Rehabilitation Counseling
Bachelor of Arts In Psychology and Philosophy
Assumption College, Worcester, Massachusetts



WAYPOINT
Holp Along the Woy

/WMcrtf
CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

JUNE 2020

Borja Alvarez de Toledo
President and CEO

Melissa BIron

Nina Chang

Bill Conrad

Tiffany Diamond

Jane Gile

John Greene

Wendy Gladstone

Brad Kuster

Marilyn Mahoney
Holly MIntz

Lyndsee Paskalls

Shayleen Roberts

Mark Rouvalis

Ken Sheldon

Jeffrey Seifert

Jennifer Stebblns

mi

toll!rroe'<800);6<10,6i486
??^j>fflceX663)i510r4obo

''i'fax'(663);668'628d?^4

m

m T»C

m



WAYPOINT
Help Along the Way

WAYPOINT

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

(With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon)



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 1

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4

Consolidated Statement of Activities 5

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses 6

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 7

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 8

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION;

Consolidated Schedule of Operating Expenses-2019 - 30

Consolidated Schedule of Operating Expenses-2018 31



Melanson
ACCOUNTaMTS ■ AUDITORS

HeXTH;

121 Riverfront Drive

Manchester, NH 03102

(603)669-6130
melansonheath.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
Additional Offices:

Nashua. NH

Ahdover. MA

To the Board of Trustees Greenfield, ma

Waypoint EUsworih, me

Report on the Financial Statements

We have atjdited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Waypoint, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2019, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles: generally accepted in the
United States of America; this Includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements.that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, Issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free frorri
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements; whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers Internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and



fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Waypoint as of December 31, 2019, and the
changes in net assets and Its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Waypoint's 2018 consolidated financial statements, and we
expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial statements in our
report dated March 26, 2019. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information
presented herein as of and for the year ended December 31,2018 is consistent, in ail material
respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The Consolidated Schedules of Operating Expenses for 2019 and 2018
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such information Is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
May 26,2020 on our consideration of Waypoint's Internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the.scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Waypoint's internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Waypoint's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

May 26, 2020



WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31,2019

{with comparative totals as of December 31, 2018)

2019

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net

Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Investments

Benefida! interest held in trusts

.Property and equipment, net

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Without Donor

Restrictions

177,479

1,260,930

79,161

145,979

1,663,549

15,894,841

6,460,382

22,355,223

With Donor

Restrictions

2,992,179

1,837,101

4,829,280

2019

Total

S  177,479

1,260,930

79,161

145,979

1,663,549

18,887,020

1,837,101

6,460,382

27,184,503

2018

Total

$  1,078,577

714,112

60,000

192,744

2,045,433

16,140,394

1,679,591

6,358,505

24,178.490

$  24,018,772 ■ $ 4,829,280 $ 28,848,052 $ 26,223,923

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 139,382 S - S  139,382 S  217,685

Accrued payroll and related liabilities 646,070 - 646,070 564,736

Other liabilities 66,628 - 66,628 67,299

Bonds payable 150,000 - 150,000 140,000

Total Current Liabilities 1,002,080 -
1,002,080 989,720

Bonds payable, net of current portion 3,915,000 . 3,915,000 4,065,000

Deferred loans - NHHFA 1,250,000 - 1,250,000 1,250,000

Interest rate swap agreements 1,072,580 - 1,072,580 885,525 ■

Total Liabilities 7,239,660 ♦ 7,239,660 7,190,245

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions 16,779,112 -
16,779,112 14,373,688

With donor restrictions - 4,829,280 , 4,829,280 4,659,990

Total Net Assets 16,779,112 4,829,280 21,608,392 19.033,678

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 24,018,772 $ 4,829,280 $  28,848,052 $  26,223,923

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2018)

2019

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

Support:

Government grants

Contributions

In-kind contributions

Income from special events, net

Revenue:

Service fees

Other

Net assets released from restriction:

Program releases

Endowment releases

Endowment transfer to support operations

Total Support and Revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Program services

Management and general

Fundraising

Total Operating Expenses

Change in net assets before
non-operating Items

NON-OPERATING ITEMS:

Investment Income (loss)

Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swap

Change in beneficial interest

interest income

Endowment transfer to support operations

Total NorvOperating items

Change in net assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year, as restated (NOTE 19)

Net Assets, £r>d of Year

-Without Donor

Restrictions

5,486,443

426,853

87,864

487,018

5,524,270

65,971

1,194,247

74,751

627,685

13,975,102

12,086,191

1,308,438

517.402

13,912,031

63,071

2,985,010

(187,054)

1,851

(627.685)

2.172.122

2,235,193

14.543.919

16.779.112

With Donor

Restrictions

S  16,056

869.431

2019

Total

(1,194,247)

(74.751)

(383,511)

(383,511)

395,291

157,510

552.801

169.290

4.659,990

S  4,829.280

5,502.499

1,296,284

87,864

487.018

5,524,270

65,971

627,685

13,591,591

12,086,191

1,308,438

517.402

13.912,031

(320.440)

3380.301

(187,054)

157,510

1,851

(627,685)

2.724.923

2,404,483

19.203.909

S  21,608,392

2018

Total

$  5,401,404

1.722.592

94,633

369,175

5,422,960

64,715

661.375

13.736.854

11,550,792

1,380,172

427,546

13,358,510

378,344

(1,006,030)

176,817

(188,315)

1,608

(661,375)

(1,677.295)

(1.298,951)

20,332,629

S  19.033,678

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2018)

Program Management 2019 ■ 2018
Services and General Fundraisine Total Total

Personnel expense:
Salaries and wages S  6,901,838 S  814,197 S  340,669 $  8,056,704 $  7,780,410
Employee benefits 886,121 84,083 24,372 994,576 827,827
Payroll related costs 861,733 72;205 27,088 961,026 834,465
Mileage reimbursement 425,994 931 199 . 427,124 445,083
Contracted services 527,006 74,153 54,573 655,732 662,720

Subtotal personnel expense 9,602,692 1,045,569 446,901 11,095,162 10,550,505

Accounting - 31,699 - 31,699 28,700
Assistance to individuals 716,800 • - 716,800 718,608

Communications 139,255 8,358 4,741 152,354 166,740
Conferences, conventions, meetings 48,489 5,949 3,600 58,038 56,018
Depreciation 326,931 39,920 - 366,851 334,662

In-kind contributions 88,014 - - 88,014 94,633
Insurance 65,690 9,585 2,597 77,872 74,104

Interest 251,532 67,874 -  - 319,406 317,772

Legal - 20,671 - 20,671 3,949
Membership dues 22,789 1,916 3,152 27,857 29,992
Miscellaneous 30,221 14,869 1,959 47,049 40,193
Occupancy 543,136 29,481 13,070 585,687 548,507

Printing and publications 29,318 2,803 29,732 61,853 ■91,540
Rental and equipment maintenance 89,746 24,229 6,542 120,517 122,782
Supplies 80,964 3,366 5,099 89,429 115,040
Travel 50,614 2,149 9 •52,772 64,765

Total Functional Expenses 5  12,086,191 $  1,308,438 $  517,402 S  13,912,031 $  -13,358,510

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2018)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets

to net cash from operating activities:

Depreciation

Contributions restricted for endowment

Realized (gain) loss on investments

Unrealized (gain) loss on investments

Change in beneficial Interest in trusts

Change in interest rate swap

inclusion of new entity In consolidated financial statements

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Other liabilities

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Purchases of Investments

Proceeds from sale of Investments

Purchase of fixed assets

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Contributions restricted for endowment

Payment of long-term debt

Net Cash Used By Financing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:

Interest paid

2019

2,404,483

366,851

(129,565)

(2,805,664)

(157,510)

187,055

20,085

(546,818)

(19.161)

46,765

(78,303)

81,334

(671)

(631,119)

(511,347)

699,950

(318,582)

(129,979)

(140,000)

(140,000)

(901,098)

1,078,577

177,479

319,406

2018

(1,298,951)

334,662

(16,717)

(136,619)

1,688,070

188,315

(176,817)

170,636

(20,000)

48,802

122,018

(101,766)

(1,763)

799,870

(693,481)

631,845

(426,805)

(488,441)

16,717

(140,000)

(123,283)

188,146

890,431

1,078,577

317,772

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WAYPOINT

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2019

1. Organization

Waypoint (the Organization) is a nonprofit organization, founded in 1850, that
currently aids more than 20,000 Individuals, statewide, through an array of social
services.

These services span the life cyde from prenatal to seniors, and can be grouped into the
following categories:

Early Childhood - Family Support & Education Services
Over 4,500 parents received education and support to improve parenting, strengthen
families, prevent child abuse and neglect, and ensure healthy development of
children. Over 500 young children starting life at a disadvantage received critical
services to ensure a good beginning and to optimize their chance for life-long success.
Some of the programs focused on early childhood Include:

Early Support one/Services - Early Support and Services provides family-centered
support and therapies to infants and toddlers who have developmental
disabilities, delays or are at risk of developmental delays. Services work to
optimize babies' cognitive, physical, emotional and social development, and
chance for success. Services are provided In the child's natural environment
(home, day care, playground, etc.).

Home Visiting Services - A number of different prevention programs are offered
in the home during those critical early years of a child's life. A spectrum of services
Includes support to new mothers and those struggling to parent; services for
children with chronic health conditions; prenatal services for babies being born at
a disadvantage into low-Income families; and programs to encourage positive
early parent/child relationships and promote optimal early childhood devel
opment. Services are provided by nurses, social workers, developmental
specialists, occupational therapists, health educators, and home visitors.

Adoption - A licensed child-placing agency, the Organization has been forming
families through adoption since 1914. The Organization's adoption professionals
provide home studies and adoption services for families looking to adopt and
provide counselling and support to birthparents who are considering the adoption
option.



Children, Youth, and Family - Intervention and Treatment Programs
The Organization contracts with the State of New Hampshire, the federal government,
and insurance companies, to provide a continuum of services for children, adolescents
and young adults. Programs are delivered In the home, schools, or community, and
include mental health counseling and substance abuse treatment, as well as a
complex system of family stabilization and preservation programs, child protection
services, and services for at-risk youth. Some of the programs include:

Foster care - The Organization works with the State of New Hampshire in placing
children who have been rescued from dangerous home environments, into safe,
stable, loving homes. The Organization recruits and supports foster families and
works to facilitate permanency for each child.

Home Based Services-The Organization has a number of programs provided in the
family home that are designed to help families who are struggling through daily
life - where children are at risk. Services work to thwart domestic violence, rebuild
families, and to improve family functioning. The Organization empowers families
with the skills and resources they need to provide for their children and become
self-sufficient.

Runaway and Homeless Youth Services
The Organization Is the sole provider of services for runaway and homeless youth In
Manchester and the Seacoast. A full spectrum of services features outreach to at-risk
youth that includes survival aid on the streets and basic needs fulfillment at the drop-
in center, as well as crisis intervention, educational and vocational advocacy, housing,
and case management. The Organization also provides behavioral health and
substance use counseling where needed. The Organization works with school systems,
police, and other agencies in addressing the needs of New Hampshire's homeless
youth.

Senior Care and Independent Living

The Organization helps seniors and individuals with chronic illness or disability to live
at home safely and with dignity, and to maintain quality of life. Under the title of Home
Care, services are delivered by homemakers, companions, personal care service
providers, and LNAs. The Organization's caregivers go to client homes to help with
everything from cooking and cleaning to personal hygiene, medication reminders,
mobility, travel to appointments, paying bills, help with daily tasks, and
communication with family members.

Other Programs

CompSpaulding-Smce 1921, Camp Spaulding has helped campers from all types
of backgrounds enjoy the benefits of a traditional, resident camp experience. In
2015, the Organization formed a partnership with the YMCA of Greater Nashua
whereby the Organization will own the camp and the YMCA will handle dally



operations and summer programming. This collaboration will combine a 96-year
camp history, an exceptional facility, strong community support, and the expertise
of two premier New Hampshire nonprofit organizations.

The New Hampshire Children's Lobby - Established In 1971, the New Hampshire
Children's Lobby Is the advocacy wing of Child and Family Services. The program's
mission is to Improve the lives of children and families through legislative, judicial,
and public policy initiatives. This combination of advocacy and direct service
practice uniquely positions the Organization to serve the best interest of New
Hampshire children.

The Children's Place and Parent Education Center - The Children's Place and

Parent Education Center (TCP) in Concord, NH is a 501(c)(3) organization

incorporated in 1978 to provide both educational and-social programs and
services to strengthen and enrich the lives of families with children, two months
through six years old.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Change in Accounting Principle

ASU 2014-09 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and 2018-08 Contributions
Received and Contributions Made

The Organization has adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09 - Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), as amended, and ASU No. 2018-08 Not-for-

; Profit Entities: Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received
and Contributions Made (Topic 605), as management believes these standards improve
the usefulness and understandabilityofthe Organization's financial reporting.

ASU 2014-09 and 2018-08 have been Implemented in 2019, and the presentation in these
consolidated financial statements has been adjusted accordingly. Analysis of various

provisions of these standards resulted in no significant changes In the way the Organization
recognizes revenue, and therefore no changes to the previously Issued audited consolidated
financial statements (presented in these consolidated financial statements as comparative
financial Information) were required on a retrospective basis. The presentation and
disclosures of revenue have been enhanced in accordance with the new standards.

ASU 2016-01 Equity Investments

In 2019, the Organization adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10):
Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, which relates
to the accounting for equity investments, financial liabilities under the fair value option,
and the presentation and disclosure requirements for financial instruments.
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Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements Include Waypoint,, Child and Family Realty
Corporation, and The Children's Place and Parent Education Center, commonly
controlled organizations. All Inter-organlzatlon transactions have been eliminated.

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying consolidated financial statements Include certain prior-year
summarized comparative Information In total, but not by net asset class. Such
Information does not Include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Accordingly, such Information should be read In conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, from which
the summarized Information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three
months or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term
purposes, are considered to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash and highly liquid
financial instruments invested for long-term purposes, including endowments that
are perpetual in nature, are excluded from this definition.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of nonlnterest-bearing amounts due for
services and programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is based
on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of
subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed
uncollectable.

Contributions Receivable

Unconditional contributions that are expected to be collected within one year are
recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional contributions that are expected to be

collected In future years are initially recorded at fair value using present value
techniques Incorporating risk-adjusted discount' rates designed to reflect the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset. In subsequent years,
amortization of the discounts is included In contribution revenue In the Consolidated

Statement of Activities. The allowance for uncollectable contributions Is based on

historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of
subsequent collections. Contributions receivable are written off when deemed
uncollectable. Management has determined that contributions receivable are fully
collectable, therefore no allowance has been recorded.

11



Investments

Investment purchases are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of
donation. Thereafter, Investments are reported at their fair values In the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. Net Investment return/(loss) Is reported In the

Consolidated Statement of Activities and consists of interest and dividend Income,

realized and unrealized gains and losses, less external Investment expenses.

The Organization maintains pooled Investment accounts for Its restricted
endowment. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are allocated to the Individual
endowments based on the relationship of the market value of each endowment to

the total market value of the pooled investment accounts, as adjusted for additions
to or deductions from those accounts.

Beneficial Interest Held in Trusts

The Organization Is the beneficiary of perpetual charitable trusts. The beneficial
interest In trusts Is reported at Its fair value, which Is estimated as the fair value of the
underlying trust assets. Distributions of Income from trust assets are restricted as to
use and are reported as Increases in net assets with donor restrictions until expended
In accordance with restrictions. The value of the beneficial Interest in the trusts Is

adjusted annually for the change in Its estimated fair value. Those changes In value
are reported as Increases In net assets with donor restrictions. The assets In the trusts
will never be distributed to the Organization.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $1,000 are recorded at cost, if purchased, and
at fair value at the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation Is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 5 to 50
years, or In the case of capitalized leased assets or leasehold Improvements, the lesser
of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise

disposed of, the cost and related depreciation is removed, and any resulting gain or
loss is Included In the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and

repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are
expensed. Assets not in service are not depreciated.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or circumstances Indicate that the carrying value of an asset may
not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from Its

use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an Impairment loss is
recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were
no Indicators of asset impairment in 2019 or 2018.
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Interest-Rate Swap

An interest-rate swap Is utilized to mitigate interest-rate risk on bonds payable. The
related liability is reported at fair value in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, and unrealized gains or losses are included in the Consolidated Statement of
Activities.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or
absence of donor or grantor-Imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and
changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions ~ Net assets available for use in general
operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. The Board
has designated, from net assets without donor restrictions, net assets for a board-
designated endowment.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor- (or certain'
grantor-) imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in
nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events
specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity while
permitting the Organization to expend the income generated by the assets In
accordance with the provisions of additional donor-imposed stipulations or a
Board.approved spending policy. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a
restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the
stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or
botli.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

The Organization recognizes contributions when cash, securities or other assets; an
unconditional promise to give; or a notification of a beneficial interest is received.
Conditional promises to give - that is, those with a measurable performance or other
barrier and a right of return - are not recognized until the conditions on which they
depend have been met. The Organization records special events revenue equal to the fair
value of direct benefits to donors, and contribution income for the excess received when
the event takes place.

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable contracts and
grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/ or the
incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue
when the Organization has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or
grant provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported
as refundable advances in the Statement of Financial Position.
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Revenues derived from providing program services, including facllitY rentals, are
recognized as the services are provided. Revenue related to facility rentals is recognized
when the performance obligation of providing the space is satisfied. Program services fees
paid In advance are deferred to the period to which they relate. All other amounts paid in
advance are deferred to the period in which the underlying event or rental takes place.
Due to the nature and timing of the performance and/or transfer of services, certain
contract liabilities at December 31 of each year are recognized in the following year.

Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services,

administration, and fundraising and development activities; however, the
consolidated financial statements do not reflect the value of these contributed

services because they do not meet recognition"^criteria prescribed by Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles. Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the
date of donation. Donated professional services are recorded at the respective fair
values of the services received.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Activities and Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. The Consolidated

Statement of Functional Expenses presents the natural classification detail of
expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited.

Measure of Operations

The Consolidated Statement of Activities reports all changes in net assets, including

changes in net assets from operating and non-operating activities. Operating activities
consist of those items attributable to the Organization's ongoing programs and
services and include the Organization's annual endowment transfer to support
operations. Non-operating activities are limited to resources outside of those
programs and services and are comprised of non-recurring gains and losses on sales
and dispositions. Investment income, changes in the value of beneficial interests and
interest rate swaps.

income Taxes

Waypoint and the Children's Place and Parent Education Center have been recognized
by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exerhpt from federal income taxes under
Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(a) as organizations described in IRC Section
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501(c)(3), qualify for charitable contribution deductions, and have been determined
not to be private foiindations. Child and Family Realty Corporation is exempt from
federal income tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an
organization described in Section 501{c)(25).

Each entity is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income
Tax (Form 990) with the IRS. In addition, each is subject to income tax on net income
that is derived from business activities that are unrelated to their exempt purpose. In

2019 and 2018, Waypoint was not subject to unrelated business income tax and did
not file an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return (Form 990-T) with the
IRS.

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements In conformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles requires estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported

amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may
differ from those estimates, and those differences could be material.

Financial instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash accounts with financial
institutions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed
insured limits. To date, no losses have been experienced in any of these accounts.
Credit risk associated with accounts and contributions receivable is considered to be

limited due to high historical collection rates. Investments are exposed to various risks
such as interest rate, market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with
certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the
values of Investment securities will occur in the near term and that such change could
materially affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position. Although the fair values.of investments are subject to fluctuation on a year-
to-year basis, the Investment Committee believes that the investment policies and
guidelines are prudent for the long-term welfare of the Organization.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the consolidated financial
statements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability In an orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous,
market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions
about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs
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that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting
entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset
or liability based on the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes
the inputs as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices
for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs

other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and
market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations,
inputs are developed using the best information available in the
circumstances.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an aisset or a liability might
be categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the
fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire measurement requires
judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The
categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency
of the asset and does not necessarily correspond to the assessment of the quality,
risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or liability.

When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 Inputs because
they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value. However, Level 1
inputs are not available for certain assets and liabilities that the Organization Is
required to measure at fair value (for example, unconditional contributions receivable
and In-kind contributions).

The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization's consolidated financial
statements are:

•  Initial measurement of noncash gifts, Including gifts of investment assets and
unconditional promises to give.

•  Recurring measurement of endowment Investments (Note 6)-Level 1.

•  Recurring measurement of beneficial interests in trusts (Note 7) - Level 3.
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•  Recurring measurement of line of credit (Note 9) - Level 2.

•  Recurring measurement of bonds payable and interest rate swap (Note 10) -
Level 2.

•  Recurring measurement of deferred loans (Note 11) - Level 2.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts and contributions
receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable, accrued payroll and related liabilities,
and other liabilities approximate fair value due to their short-term nature.

New Accounting Standards to be Adopted in the Future

Leases

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU 2016-02,

Leases. The ASU requires all leases with lease terms more than 12 months to be
capitalized as a right of use asset and lease liability on the Statement of Financial
Position at the date of lease commencement. Leases will be classified as either finance

leases or operating leases. This distinction will be relevant for the pattern of expense
recognition in the Statement of Activities. This ASU will be effective for the
Organization for the year ending December 31, 2021. The Organization is currently in
the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial
statements.
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3. Liquidity and AvaMablllty

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the date of the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, are comprised of the following at December 31,2019:

Hnancial assets at year end:

. Cash and cash equivalents $ 177,479
Accounts receivable, net 1,260,930
Contributions receivable 79,161

Investments 18.887,020

BeneflciaMnterest held In trusts , 1,837,101

Total flnancial assets 22,241,691

Less amounts not available to be used w/lthin one year

Net assets with donor restrictions 4,829,280

less:

Net assets with purpose restrictions to be met in less than a year (538,689)
Donor-restricted endowment subject to spending policy rate (4.00%)

and appropriation (98,140) 4,192.451

Board-designated endownent 15,894,841

Less: Board-designated erxiowment annual spending

policy rate (4.00%) (563,860) 15,330,981

Less total amounts not available to be used within one year 19,523,432

financial assets available to meet general expenditures

over the next year

Endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowments and funds designated by

the Board to function as endowments. Income from donor-restricted endowments Is

restricted for specific purposes. The portion of endowment funds that are perpetual
In nature are not available for general expenditure.

Board-designated endowment Is subject to an annual spending rate as determined by
the Board. Although there is no intention to spend from board-designated
endowment (other than amounts appropriated for general expenditure as part of the
Board's annual budget approval and appropriation), these amounts could be made
available if necessary.

As part of its liquidity management plan, the Organization also has a $1,500,000
revolving line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.
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4. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist of the following at December 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Receivable Allowance ' Net Receivable Allowance Cist

Grants receivaUc S 678,502 $  • $ 678,502 S  379.362 s s 379,362

Fees forser\^ce 584.728 (2,300) 582,428 338,650 (3,900) 334,750

Total $ 1,263,230 S  (2,300) S 1,260,930 S  718,012 S  (3,900) $ 714,112

5. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses at year end relate primarily to prepaid Insurance and contracts.

6. Investments

Investments at fair value consist of mutual funds totaling $18,887,020 and
$16,140,394 at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. During 2019, the

Organization recognized $2,935,229 of net gains and losses on investments. Of that
amount, $2,935,229 was recognized on Investments of equity securities held at
December 31,2019.

Under the terms of the Organization's line of credit agreement (Note 9), the
Organization has agreed not to pledge these investments as security on any other

debt.

The Organization's policy is to avail itself of a Board-approved percentage of
investment income for operations with any remaining Interest, dividends, or

appreciation reinvested. The spending policy approved by the Board of Trustees for
, 2019 was 4.25% of the average fair market value of all Investments over the previous
twelve quarters.

As discussed in Note 2 to these consolidated financial statements, the Organization is

required to report Its fair value measurements in one of three levels, which are based
on the ability to observe in the marketplace the inputs to the Organization's valuation
techniques. Level 1, the most observable level of Inputs, Is for investments measured
at quoted prices in active mairkets for identical investments as of the December 31,
2019. Level 2 is for investments measured using inputs such as quoted prices for
similar assets, quoted prices for the Identical asset in Inactive markets, and for
Investments measured at net asset value that can be redeemed in the near term. Level

3 is for investments measured using inputs that are unobservable, and Is used in

situations for which there Is little, if any, market activity for the investment.
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The Organization uses the foliowing ways to determine the fair value of its
Investments:

Mutual funds: Determined by the published vaiue per unit at the end of the
last trading day of the year, which is the basis for transactions at that date.

7. Beneficial Interest Held in Trusts

The Organization is the sole beneficiary of three funds that are administered by the
New Hampshire Charitable Foundation (NHCF). Income from the funds is to provide
assistance to children attending Camp Spaulding and for capital improvements to the
camp. The fund resolution provides that distributions from the furtds can be made at
the discretion of the NHCF Board of Directors.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the fair market value of the funds, which
approximates the present vaiue of future benefits expected to be received, was
$858,994 and $800,624, respectively.

In addition, the Organization has a split-interest in three charitable remainder trusts.
The assets are held in trust by banks as permanent trustees of the trusts. The fair value
of these beneficial interests is determined by applying the Organization's percentage
interest to the fair value of the trust assets as reported by the trustee.

Percentage

Trust Interest 2019 2018

Greenieaf 100% $ 384,004 $ 350,806

Spaulding 100% 332,956 297,837

Cogswell 50% 261,147 230,324

Total s 978,107 $ 878,967

Beneficial interest held in trusts is reported at fair vaiue, which is estimated as the
present value of expected future cash inflows on a recurring basis. As discussed in
Note 2, the valuation technique used by the Organization is a Level 3 measure because
there are no observable market transactions.
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8. Property, Equipment, and Depreciation

Property and equipment Is comprised of the following at December 31, 2019 and
2018:

2019 2018

Land and land improvements $  1,114,949 $ 1,114,949

Buildings and improvements 8,862,063 8,335,089

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 843,251 796,686

Vehicles 107,581 107,581

Software 377,333 285,372

Construction in progress 5,415 38,870

Subtotal 11,310,592 10,678,547

Less accumulated depreciation (4,850,210) (4,320,042)

Total $  . 6,460,382 $ 6,358,505

9. Line of Credit

The Organization has a $1,500,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank. The
line of credit expired on June 30, 2019 and was extended through June 30, 2020. The
line is secured by a first lien on accounts receivable, double negative pledge on all

■  investments of the borrower, and carries a variable rate of Interest at the Wall Street

Journal prime rate (4.75% at December 31, 2019), adjusted daily. At December 31,

2019, the balance on this line of credit was $529.

10. Bonds Payable

During 2007, the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (the
"Authority") sold $5,540,000 of its Revenue Bonds, Child and Family Services Issue,
Series 2007, and loaned the proceeds of the bonds to the Organization to refund its
Series 1999 Series Bonds and to finance certain Improvements to the Organization's

facilities. The Series 2007 Bonds were issued with a variable interest rate determined

on a weekly basis. Prior to Issuing the Bonds, the Organization entered into an interest

rate swap agreement (the "Swap Agreement") with Citizens Bank of NH (the "Counter
party") for the life of the bond issue to hedge the Interest rate risk associated with the
Series 2007 Bonds. The interest rate swap agreement requires the Organization to pay

the Counterparty a fixed rate of 3.915%; in exchange, the Counterparty will pay the
Organization a variable rate on the notional amount based on the 67% of one month
LIBOR. Counterparty payments to the Organization were intended to offset
Organization payments of variable rate interest to bond holders. Counterparty credit
worthiness and market variability can Impact the variable rates received and paid by
the Organization, with the potential of Increasing Organization interest payments. As
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a result, the cost of the interest rate swap for 2019 and 2018 is added to interest
expense in the Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses. The bonds mature in
2038 and can be repaid at any time.

The Organization is required to Include the fair value of the swap in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, and annual changes, if any, in the fair value of the
swap in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. For example, during the bond's 30-
year holding period, the annually calculated value of the swap will be reported as an
asset if interest rates Increase above 'those In effect on the date of the swap was
entered into (and as an unrealized gain in the Consolidated Statement of Activities),
which will generally be indicative that the net fixed rate the Organization is paying on
the swap is below market expectations of rates during the remaining term of the
swap. The swap will be reported as a liability (and as an unrealized loss in the Consoli
dated Statement of Activities) if interest rates decrease below those in effect on the
date the swap was entered into, which will generally be indicative that the net fixed
rate the Organization is paying oh the swap is above market expectations of rates
during the remaining term of the.wap. The annual accounting adjustments of value
changes in the swap transaction are non-cash recognition' requirements, the net
effect of which will be zero at the end of the bond's 30-year terrn. At December 31.

2019 and 2018, the Organization recorded the swap liability position of $1,072,580
and $885,525, respectively. During 2009, there occurred a downgrading of the credit
rating of the Counterparty to the letter of credit reimbursement agreement, which
triggered a mandatory tender of the Series 2007 Bonds in whole and a temporary
conversion of one-hundred percent of the principal amount to a bank purchase mode
under the terms of said letter of credit reimbursement agreement. Since It became

evident that the credit markets would not soon return to normalcy, the Organization

elected to convert the Series 2007 Bonds from a weekly rate mode to a bank purchase
mode. This new bank purchase mode created a rate period in which the Series 2007
Bonds bear interest at the tax adjusted bank purchase rate of 6iB% of the sum of the
adjusted period LIBOR (30 day) rate and 325 basis points. The bank purchase mode
commenced on July 31, 2009 and expired on July 31, 2014; however, the expiration
date was extended by the Counterparty and the Organization had the option to
convert back to the weekly rate mode. The Series 2007 Bond documents require the
Organization to comply with certain financial covenants. As of December 31, 2019,
the Organization was in compliance with these covenants.
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The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned bonds
payable;

Year Amount

2020 S 150,000

2021 160,000

2022 165,000

2023 175,000

2024 180,000

Thereafter 3,235,000

Total $ 4,065,000

11. Deferred Loans - NHHFA

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority dated June 7,
2005. The face amount of the note is $550,000, does not require the payment of
interest, and is due In 30 years. The note Is secured by real estate located in Dover,
New Hampshire.

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority dated May 22,
2007. The face amount of the note is $700,000, does not require the payment of
interest, and is due in 30 years. The note is secured by real estate located in
Manchester, New Hampshire.

12. Endowment Funds

The Organization's endowment consists of various individual funds established for a
variety of purposes. Endowment Includes both donor-restricted funds and funds
designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments. As required by
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, net assets associated with endowment
funds, Including funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as
endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
Imposed restrictions.

Board-designated Endowment

As of December 31, 2019, the Board of Trustees had designated $15,894,841 of net
assets without donor restrictions as a general endowment fund to support the mission
of the Organization.
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Donor-designated Endowments

The Board of Trustees of the Organization has Interpreted the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the
fair value of the original gift as of the gift date for donor-restricted perpetual
^endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of
this interpretation, the Organization classifies as perpetually restricted net assets
(a) the original value of gifts donated to the endowment, (b) the original value of
subsequent gifts to the endowment, and (c) accumulations to the endowment made
in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time
the accumulation is added. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment
fund that is not classified as perpetually restricted is classified as net assets with donor
restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization
in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accor
dance with UPMIFA, the Organization considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:
(1) the duration and preservation of the various funds;, (2) the purposes of the donor-
restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect
of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total returri from income and the
appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of the Organization, and (7) the
Organization's investment policies.

Funds with Deficiencies

The Organization considers a fund to be underwater if the fair value of the fund is less
than the sum of (a) the original value of initial and subsequent gift amounts donated to
the fund and (b) any accumulations to the fund that are required to be maintained in
perpetuity in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument. The
Organization complies with UPMIFA and has interpreted UPMIFA to permit spending
from underwater funds in accordance with prudent measures required under the law.
The Organization had no underwater endowment funds at December 31, 2019.

Investment Policy

The Organization has adopted an investment and spending policy to ensure a total
return (income plus capital change) necessary to preserve and enhance the principal
of the fund and, at the same time, provide a dependable source of support for current
operations and programs. The withdrawal from the fund in support of current
operations is expected to remain a constant percentage of the total fund, adjusted for
new gifts to the fund.

In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, reasonable diversification is
sought where possible. Experience has shown financial markets and inflation rates are
cyclical and, therefore, control of volatility will be achieved through investment styles.
Asset allocation parameters have been developed for various funds within the
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structure, based on investment objectives, liquidity needs, and time horizon for
intended use.

Measurement of investment performance against policy objectives will be computed
on a totai return basis, net of management fees and transaction costs. Total return is
defined as dividend or Interest income plus realized and unrealized capital
appreciation or depreciation at fair market value.

Spending Policy

. The Organization's spending policy rate in 2019 was 4.25% of the average total
endowment value over the trailing 12 quarters with a 1% contingency margin. This
includes interest and dividends paid out to the Organization.

The net asset composition of endowment net assets as of December 31, 2019 and
changes in endowment net assets for the year ended December 31, 2019 are as
follows:

with Donor Wxt/ktiom Total Net
Without Donor Purpe»e ComuUthe PenWW'fy Endowment
Heiiitettom Rmldctcd AEGEW'aqW

Endowmen.net.t«...,be,lnrtn,o(ve«S 14.007.444 S ■ S 453.544 S 1.679,406 - S 2432.950 5

Tcnipanrv ippropriation lor
purfKMe.f«ftrtcled net Msets (538.689) 538,689 -ae-ioi itenvti
ln;^lnco«.rm 2.98SX>10 ^ 395,291 ^ I25J91. ..
Endowment n«.«et.. end ot re" S ISjgM.adl S 538.689 5 224,084 $ 1,679^06 S^,992^179_ S

13. Net Assets

Net assets without donor restriction are comprised of the following at December 31,
2019 and 2018:

2019 • 2018

Undesignated net assets $ 884,271 S 366,244
Board designated endowment 15,894,841 14,007,444

Total $ 16,779,112 $ 14,373,688
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Net assets with donor restrictions are comprised of the following at December 31,
2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Camp

Child abuse prevention

Family counseling"

Family resource center

Homecare

Human trafficking

IT and other projects

Teen and youth

Endowment:

Accumulated earnings restricted by donors for:

General operations

Camp operations

Other purposes

Original gift restricted by donors for:
General operations

Camp operations

Other purposes

Total restricted endowment

Not subject to spending policy or appropriation:

Beneficial interest in trusts

Total

71,265

98,265

9,398

34,569

111,587

10,000

108,522

95.083

538,689

176,893

198,902

398,289

774.084

133,407

548,988

997,011

1,679,406

2,453,490

1.837,101

113,699

153,836

14,160

92,430

30,000

208,891

234,433

847,449

131,716

92,896

228,932

453,544

133,407

548,988

997,011

1,679,406

2,132,950

1,679,591

$  4,829,280 $ 4,659,990
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Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose or by occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified
by the donors as follows for the year ended December 31, 2019:

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:

Camp S 119,417
Child abuse prevention 150,071

Family counseling 41,834
Family resource center 2,211
Homecare 295,499

Human trafficking 50,000
IT and other projects 312,866
Teen and youth 222,349

. 1,194,247

Restricted-purpose spending-rate

distributions and appropriations:

General operations 11,268
Camp operations 27,789
Other purposes 35,694

74,751

Total $ 1,268,998

14. Assistance to Individuals

The $716,800 in "Assistance to individuals" (see Consolidated Statement of Functional
Expenses) is comprised of the following (rounded to the nearest thousand):

Payment to parents of foster children $ 302
Housing assistance to youth at risk of homelessness 144
Gift cards provided to families during holiday season 59
Food for at risk youth 25

Other assistance such as medical, childcare,

transportation, and family activities T86

Total $ 216

15. Functionallzed Expenses

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are
attributed to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses
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require allocation on a reasonable basis that Is consistently applied. The expenses that
are allocated include clerical, IT, and administration, which are allocated to program
and supporting services based primarily on a percentage of personnel costs related to
programs and supporting services,

16. Defined Contribution Plan

The Organization maintains a 403(b) Thrift Plan (the Plan). The Plan is a defined
contribution plan that all eligible employees may immediately make elective
participant contributions to upon hire. A pretax voluntary contribution Is permitted
by employees up to limits imposed by the Internal Revenue Code and other limitations
specified in the Plan. There were no contributions made to the plan by the
Organization for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

17. Operating Leases

The Organization leases office space under the terms of non-cancellable lease agree
ments that expired at various times during 2019. The Organization also rents
additional facilities on a month to month basis. Rent expense under these agreements
totaled $182,763 and $182,368 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

18. Related Party Transactions

The Organization procures a portion of their legal services from a local law firm that
employs an attorney who also serves on the Organization's Board of Directors. The
attorney board member does not personally perform the legal services. For the year
ended December 31, 2019, the total legal expense from related parties was $15,680.

19. Prior Period Restatement

Beginning net assets for 2019 have been increased by $170,231 to include the assets,
liabilities, and net assets of The Children's Place and Parent Education Center, which
is now inciuded in these consolidated financial statements. On November 1, 2019
Waypoint's Board of Directors took over responsibility for this organization. The
comparative totals that are presented with these consolidated financial statements
have not been restated.

20. Concentration of Risk

The majority of the Organization's grants are received from agencies of the State of
New Hampshire. As such, the Organization's ability to generate resources via grants is
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dependent upon the economic health of that area and of the State of New Hampshire.
An economic downturn could cause a decrease in grants that coincides with an
Increase In demand for the Organization's services.

21. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through May 26, 2020, the date the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

The COViD-19 outbreak in the United States (and across the globe) has resulted in

economic uncertainties. The disruption is expected to be temporary, but there is
considerable uncertainty around the duration and scope. The extent of the Impact of
COVlD-19 on our operational and financial performance will depend on certain
developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, impact on our
individuals served, employees, and vendors, all of which are uncertain and cannot be
predicted. At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact our financial
condition or results of operations is uncertain. In response to the Impact that COVID-
19 has had on our Organization, a Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) Loan was
applied for, and $1,741,500 received on April 24,2020.
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Schedule of Operating Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Child Abuse Mopdons
Tccn Tr»«mem Odld and Martttcmcnt

Fifrfly and 8 Family Abuse Early Fra|f»ancv CNId Summer Teal and 2019
CoofttHlfw Youth Strenethecdna Prcvcrllon Intervention Homecire Counsaline Advocicv Camo Proeram general Fimdraitlne Toai

S«[*ries «ndwi|u $  J92,6»3 $ 811.578 S  1.797,236 S  1.565,113 5  359443 S  1.758,488 5  88.632 5  121,616 $  7,144 S 6401438 5  814.197 S  340,669 S 8,056,704
EffQloye* bcmnti 36.3S2 123.479 255.330 224,471 31,739 198,672 11.097 3,730 1.221 886,121 84,083 24,372 994,576
Payroll rcliud <osu 5S.61S 95.590 231.536 195,954 42,973 220,779 9,016 9,631 629 861.733 72.205 27.088 961.026
Milej(e rclmbutiemem 37.961 230.948 66.254 21.254 63,078 1,726 203 S3 425,994 931 199 427.124

CenOYcted ter^cej 10X«6 53.084 86.374 138,533 25,490 26,769 6,713 5,386 174,591 527,006 74.153 54473 655,732
Accoundnf

• • • 31.699 . 31.699
tatHara to IndMduaU S7 231.226 355.852 115.078 8 7,614 6,965 716.800 . 716,800
CcnvnutlcitMni 37.2S0 37.355 35.008 5.136 16.498 1449 1413 453 139,255 8458 4.741 152454
ConferoncM. eonvontiors.

meetln|s 5.540 4.918 8.887 868 9,187 350 16487 272 48,483 5.949 3.600 58438
Depreciatior) 8^ UO.OS1 49.246 44,442 8.408 8,408 4,804 2.402 70,762 326,931 39,920 366451
In-Und contrlbutlont 45,647 42.367 - - 88,014 . 88414
Inturanct 4,078 11.053 21.357 17.108 3477 7,044 703 760 210 65.690 9.585 2497 77472
(ntemt 13.973 39.926 81.848 73.863 13474 13,974 7.985 3.993 1,996 251432 67,874 . 319,406
Letal (7,826) • 7.826 • . 20,671 - 20.671
Mtmberthlp duct 5.699 1,530 2,425 8.235 385 3466 170 767 112 22,789 1,916 3.152 27457

Mtecllaneocrt (28.712) 3,212 3.536 8,736 2418 33453 6,688 234 658 30,221 14469 14S9 47449
Occupancy S8.9S8 191.947 163.147 101.733 11423 6480 ' 3.1QS 3,915 1.628 543.136 29,481 13470 585.687
Prindni and pubBcatiom 1.565 4.042 3.934 10468 1456 5,734 1420 951 158 29418 2.803 29.732 6I453
Rersal and eoidprnent

malntenanct (692) 14,221 28.684 26400 4,936 11,373 2.754 1,414 756 89,746 24429 6442 120417
Supplies 10.530 32.348 19.132 U421 1.185 3,297 502 574 75 10464 3466 5.099 89,429
Travel 3.779 22.015 8.192 14.803 851 112 438 424 S0414 2.149 9 52,772

Total S  S7A.8S3 S 1.891.710 5  3.423.407 5  2.668.407 5  535.729 5  2.394.726 5  154.938 5  174.314 S  268,107 5 12.086.191 S  1408.438 S  517,402 S 13.912431

See Independent Auditors' Report.

30



WAYPOINT

Consolidated Schedule of Operating Expenses

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

CMdAbuie - Adeptfont

Tctn Trtatmant Odld and Manacemenc

Ean^ty and fc Fandly Abut* Earty Prei nancy Child Summer Teal and 2018

CourneHnt Youth 5tr*nrth»n;nf Pmvpmion iwafWBtksn Hofwcant Counttllni Advocaev Camp Pfoeram general ppf«iraltlnf Total

Stlarlw indwafH S  466.270 $ 940497 S  1,571,090 S  1.435,811 S  344492 5  1.649,913 S  81428 S  118,831 5  6.728 S  6,614460 5  849,923. 5  316.127 5 7,780,410

Emplov** bcnefiB 39.7»9 135,622 190,979 181,757 33,660 144454 12,964 2,883 897 742.615 66, U1 19,071 827427

Ptyrall rtlattd cqsb S6.9S7 100,911 173479 161482 37,294 19642S 7,437 9,278 521 743,794 65449 25.122 834,465

Milcaft rtifflbwsifTWRt S.S60 41,849 249406 66,137 18,647 S9474 1,294 69 156 ,  442.792 1478 413 445483

Comneted lervtut 28,809 43407 95485 165,055 204SS 23446 9,429 U12 171,937 560,035 96,132 6453 662,720

Accountlflt . - - • 28,700 28,700

Aftitunct to IndvWuals S.064 19^794 368445 133.826 3414 10471 7,494 718,608 •
7U.608

Cenvnunieadon* 8.493 38,575 41,973 33,808 4440 16,451 1,998 1422 584 141.344 10,147 8,249 . 166,740

Conftrenccs, convttidont.

mMdnft 3,014 3,681 2415 19,919 1444 1,649 3 1,957 1 34,183 19433 2402 56,018

Oeprtdation 7.672 118,639 44,925 40,542 7,670 7,670 4.383 2,191 64453 288,245 36,417 334,662

tft-Und contributlora 1,510 61.077 27,626 . • • 90,213 3,420 1,000 94,633

Intunnce 5.681 11,048 17,880 15,802 5428 6,877 711 775 U8 62,170 9,468 2.466 74,104

Imerut 13.902 39,721 81429 73,485 13403 13403 7,944 3,972 1,986 250,245 67427 317,772

let*>
. . . . . 3,949 3.949

Miinbtnhlp duts 1431 1.254 1.224 7,241 8 6466 3 502 3 18,132 7,947 3,913 29,992

MisctntnMUi 1,647 4,518 6,725 3475 1452 5481 648 174 232 24452 13,167 2,674 40,193

Occupancy 45,179 148,763 140.092 111418 10,107 27452 3,222 3497 5489 495,619 41,188 11.700 548407

Printinf and puUictdont 24«1 9,092 14441 12470 .  3403 124S4 435 U20 672 55,968 12,656 22.916 91440

Remal and aqulpfflent

mainCenanct 5410 15,574 30466 27,270 5,186 6493 2460 USS 823 95,167 25486 2,029 122,782

SuppflM 10474 26,700 21.931 17,739 3489 12.408 654 719 71 ~  94,685 17,700 2.655 115,040

958 36.453 4.662 14.225 989 3433 134 147 464 6L2S5 3.144 356 64.765

Total $  711,421 5 1468,075 5  3.084.373 5  2.52a762 S  509467 5  2.196463 5  145418 S  15L634 S  263.179 5  1145a792 5  1480.172 5  427.546 S 13.358.510

See Independent Auditors' Report. .
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